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CREST NICHOLSON PLC
STRATEGIC REPORT

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Annual Report and Financial Statements consolidate the results of Crest Nicholson plc (the ‘Company’) and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the ‘Group’) and include the Group's interest in jointly controlled entities. The principal activity of the Group
is the design and delivery of sustainable housing and mixed-use communities. The Groups' core operations are focused on the
southern half of the UK with emphasis on creating hlgh quality, well-designed homes and sustainable communities.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

We launched an updated strategy in January 2020 to restore the Group to being one of the UK's leading housebuilders. We remain
focused on delivering against our strategic priorities. Some necessary adaptations were made to our approach during the pandemic
to address and mitigate challenges presented at the time. We ook decisive action to maintain progress against our strategy and we
are now more robust as a result. In the past 24 months, we have delivered a turnaround of the Group's financial and.operational
performance, making us more resilient and creating a solid scalable operatinig platform with an experienced leadership team,
enabling us t6 now move into a period of growth.

We have made strong progress on ali five strategic priorities this year, resuiiting in a significantly enhanced financial performance.
We continue to be guided by our four foundations, outlined new financial targets and have made new sustainability and social value
commitments.

The strategic priorities of the Group include:

. Placemaking.and quality — Our placemaking expertise and quality houses are synonymous with the Crest Nicholson brand.
Creating attractive and vibrant communities with a focus on sustainability is what we do well. We create homes that are
right for our custormers and their lifestyle choices, with a reputation for great design and build quality. We are continually
striving to improve the energy efficiency and sustainability of our homes. Our new house type range has enabled us to
adapt our designs in response to the Future Homes Standard and to help ourselves and our customers mitigate and adapt
to the impacts of climate change. We will continue to focus our investments on desirable locations that meet our criteria for
placemaking and attractive design. We aimto leave a legacy of sustainable and thriving communities,

. Land Portfolio = We have a well-located land portfolio with a weighting in Southern England, where demand is high for
good quality land, and supply is more constrained. We have approximately five years of short-term land which we believe
is the ideal size for our forecasted needs. We continuously seek to optimise the value of our land portfolio, by having an
efficient operating platform, lean overhead structurés and by driving additional value through re-plotting of our new and
existing schemes. Our operdtional efficiency programme has lowered-our build costs and enabled us to be more
competitive in the land market. This has supported the Group's increased land acquisition in the year and will contribute to
the expansion of future operating margins. The Group can confidently look to acquire land in new geographies because of
this stronger operational platform and the local market knowledge of the leadership team.

o Operational efficiency — The rollout of our new house types is on track, with 74% of open market housing in the short-
term land portfolio now forecast to use this range. These homes will benefit from our enhancéd specification which we
source through grealer strategic alliances with our suppliers. The combination of the new house types and specification
has simplified our build processes and reduced build times, This helps us to deliver more homes {o customers on time.
The Group continues to maintain a disciplined approach to central overheads and further savings were identified and
embedded across all central functions. As the Group prepares for geographical expansion, we will see some central
overhead investment as we recruit the new divisional teams and incur some establishment costs. This inéremental cost
will be closely monitored and controlled. Over time, as the new divisions start to mature, will see further efficiencies of
scale being delivered.

o Five-star customer service — We have a 'right first-time' culture and are focused on the smooth delivery 6f homes to
customers and providing a high quality after sales service. During the year we have established comprehensive brand
guidelines, benchmarking and best practice to ensure high customer service is maintained and consistent across all
developments. We have implemented an enhanced Customer Relationship Management system and customer website
which has boosted our lead management effectiveness. Our digital marketing strategy is evolving to reflect the changing
ways our customers are choosing to interact with our brand. We were delighted to be awarded five-star status for
customer satisfaction again by the Home Builders Federation (HBF).

«  Multi channel approach — Crest Nicholson Partnerships and Strategic Land {(CNPSL) is responsible for both sourcing Jand
and developing parntnership arrangements. It ensures future schemes are designed and planned in line with our
placemaking principles. The strategic land team in this division are experienced in managing and promoting our strategic
land portfolio to bring these sites through for development. The division develops relationships with public sector bodies,
the Private Rented Sector and Registered Providers. The division then also manages these ongoing ionger-term
relationships and strategic partnerships. In FY21 CNPSL agreed multiple transactions on increasingly stronger terms and
lower discounts to open market sales prices. Our reputation for being a trusted partner in this rapidly expanding part of the
market continues to grow. We were also able to divest some of our poorer legacy schemes through this channel which will
allow the Group to recycle capital into more accretive investments in the future.
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CREST NICHOLSON PLC
STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

Our strategic priorities are underpinned by four foundations:

« Safety, Health & Environment - This is our number one priority as we strive. for continuous improvement and set the
target to be among the industry leaders for safety performance.

» Sustainability & Social Value ~ We recagnise the importance placed on environmental, social and governance issues by
our stakeholders. We aim to integrate sustainability into ail aspects of the business in order to deliver a positive
contribution, both environmentally and socially; through our operations and the €reation of new homés and communities.

» Peopie - The quality.of 6ut people and the decisions they make are fundamental to the successful |mplementahon of our
strategy. We will continue to focus on the diversity of our workforce and embed the values that will strengthen our
culture.

e Financial Targets - At the outset of the COVID-19 pandemic the Board suspended all forward financial guidance. In
October 2021 at our Capital Markets Day, the Group communicated néw_ fmancnal targets for FY24 through to FY26.

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
We monitor our business performance using a range of key performance indicators (KPls).

Our.KPIs are de&gned to ensure that we remain focused on delivering sustalnable growth in volumes while dellvenng shareholder
returns within the framework of a robust balance sheet. We also ensure that the pace of growth doés not.compromise build quality,
customer satisfaction of the safety of those working on our sites,

2021 2020 2019

Placemaking and quality

NHBC reportable items Number 0.32 0.22 0.20

Land Portfolio )

Short-tefm additions gross margm (excluding bulk) % 28.3 27.7 27.2

Outlets (average number of active selling outlets) Number 59 63 59

Operational efficiency

Adjusted overhead efficiency? % 6.3 7.2 5.9

Sales and marketing cost (proportion of open market sales) % 25 3.1 3.8

Build costs (operational portfolio average residential build cost per £ build cost 161 177 N/A

square foot) . per sq. ft.

Multi channel approach .

Number of units in our portfolio under partnership . Units 1,448 2,118 2,493

Percentage of units in our portfolio under parinership % 9.9 14:1 14.8

Customer satisfaction

5 * (NHBC customer satisfaction score) Stars - 5 5 4

Safety, Health & Enviror{ment .

Annual injury incidence rate Number 385 369 372

Sustainability & Social Value ‘

Greenhouse gas emissions intensity (scope 1 and 2 emissions per Number 2.52 3.08 3.20

100 sq. m of completed homes)

Waste intensity (tonnes of construction waste per 100 sq. m of Number 9.25 8.19 9.64

competed homes) A 7

Sacial infrastructure contributions (through s106 and community £m 25.4 48.5 N/IA

infrastructure levy payments committed to in the year)

People .

Voluntary employee turnover! . % 35.0 25.6 18.3

Employee engagement survey.index % 75 70 N/A

Financial Targets .

Unit completions? Units 2,407 2,247 2,912
_ Return on capital employed? % 121 6.4 147

Gearing including land creditors? % 9.5 6.4 7.9

Earnings before interest and tax margin® % 14.0 8.3 11.5

! Voluntary employee turnover in Fy20 and FY19 includes those lef within probation.

2 Sales of homes recognised in the year including 100% of those held in joint ventures and on an equivalent unit basis. FY20 and FY19 sales of
homes recognised in the year including our proportion of those held in joint ventures and not on an equivalent unit basis.

3 Return on capital employed, gearing mcludlng tand creditors, earnings before interest and tax margin and adjusted overhead efficiency are
alternative performance measures. See pages 71-72 for fudher details.
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. 'CREST NICHOLSON PLC.
STRATEGIC REPORT (continued).
RESULTS/AND DIVIDEND

The Group has-delivered.a strong rebound in fmanctal performance:this- yea .
mcrease our f nancual expectatnons ‘s the "ear unfo|ded We made "reat pr

Group was able to nav:g ts way throug 'these ch lenges suctessfully and is confident it is already SE8iNng- sngns that: these
Ppressures: have stabilised -arid in"some ‘areas; have'started to reduce.

commercnal sales for the year at:l £49 2 (2020 £17 8m). Gross proft margln wa £ 1 ;
yéar:

con] ned the voluntary repayment.'l ) lhe year of'£2 5m. of Government Job Retentlon Scheme financial support Wthh Was recevved
and.recognised in the prior year. Given the- Group s |mproved financial perfofniance a higher bonus charge ‘has alse- beén
recognised. year:on-year and.offsetting ‘this ‘has been the reclassification of managemént fée income from jaint ventures of £1.5m fo
administrative expenses fiom cost of sates. |

N
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' CREST NICHOLSON PLC
STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

_A netimpairmerit loss on financial assets of £1.0m (2020 exceptional charge of £7.6m) was recognised in the year in respect of the
London Chest Hospital development. This asset is held in a joint venture with an interest-bearing intercompany loan between the
Group and the joint venture. The proposed development was subject to a judicial review in the year, challenging the consent that
had been givén 16 devélop the site. The review was upheld, and the Group is in the process of appealing against the ruling. To
reflect the latest timing Aow expected for works to commence and sales to then be recognised, and in consideration of the loan
arrangement in the shared joint venture vehicle, the Group has recorded a further £1.0m charge for the expected credit loss on the
loan associated with this scheme.

Adjusted operating profit rose strongly to £110.2m {2020: £56.2m) reflecting the significantly enhanced gross margin performance
and ongoing focus on tightly controlling overheads. This translated into an adjusted profit before tax (APBT) for the year of £116,8m
(2020: £50.7m), up 130.4% on prior year. Profit before tax after exceptional items for the year was £96. 5m (2020: £13.2m loss),
reflecting the combined impact of the stronger year-on-year operating profit contribution and the lower exceptional charge
comparative. Operating profit was £89.4m (2020: loss .of £7.2m).

The Group has made good progréss this year in implementing its strategy and its turnaround is now complete. The divestment of
the Longcross Film Studio has provided a significant one-off contribution to profitability in the year, but also significantly
strengthened a rapidly improved balance sheet. Given these financial resources-and the Group's positive outiook for the UK
housing market, and clear visibility to improving gross margins in future years:

The Directors do not propose a dividend for the year (2020: nil).

EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

As we came out of the first lockdown in May 2020, the overwhelming consensus amongst market commentators was that house
prices would fall sharply given the exp‘ected economic consequences of the pandemic. At this time, Crest Nicholson had some zero
or low margin sites which would require impairing if this séénario was to be realised. This was the context for the exceptional net
realisable value (NRV) provns:on that the Group made at FY20, as we apphed an assumed 7.5% reduction in residential selling
prices and a 32.0% reduction in commercial values across our wholg portfolio.

In contrast to this outlook the housing market has performed strongly during the yéar. The Government acted decisively in the face
of COVID-19 by temporarily reducing the rate of stamp duty and encouraging housebuilders to remain operational with the
appropriate safety protocols in place. In addition, the way in which COVID-19 has challenged traditional working patterns has
encouraged homeowners to assess the suitability of their current property for’ home working and driven a desire for more outdoor
space. All these factors have helped underpin strong demand for new homes and resulted in house price inflation.

Accordingly, the Group took the decision lo reassess its NRV provision without a forecast 7.5% residential sales price fall. It has
also retained the 32.0% commercial sales price fall assumption relating to commercial property, where market conditions remain
challenging. Although a large proportion of this provision has, or will be utilised to trade out of complex, mostly apartment-based
legacy schemes, releasing the remaining balance has created an exceptional credit to the income statement of £8.0m.

In the year ended 31 October 2019, following the latest Government guidance notes in reépect of combustible materials, fire risk
and protection, and regulatory compliance on completed developments, the Group recorded an exceptional charge of £18.4m.

In the year ended 31 October 2020, the Group reassessed the adequacy of thé provision held, resuiting in a net combustible
materials charge of £0.6m, comprising a charge of £2.6m and a credit of £2.0m from séettlement of claims against architects and
subcontractors forincorrect building design ‘or workmanship. These Costs were previously included within the combustible materials
exceptional expense.

In the current year, the Group again reassessed the adequacy of the provision held, resulting in a net charge of £28.8m, comprising
a charge of £31.2m'and a credit of £2.4m from settlements of claims against architects and subcontractors. The main driver for the
increase in the charge has been the September 2021 deadline for freeholders and managing agénts to apply for the Government's
Building Safety Fund and so during the year the Group received new claims predominantly where it is n6 longer the freeholder of
the building and following the results of intrusivé surveys where fire related defects have been identified. The Group spent £3.4m in
the year across several buildings requiring further investigative costs, including balcony and cladding related works. See notes 19
and 22 for additiona! information. Total exceptional items before tax are £20.3m (2020: £63.9m).

SHARE CAPITAL
The Company has 115,294,459 Ordinary shares of 10p each in issue at 31 October 2021 (2020: 115,294,459 Ordinary shares). There
have been no changes to the Company'’s share capital during the year.

FINANCIAL POSITION
The Group had net assets at 31 October 2021 of £1,010.2m (2020 restated to reflect the change in accounting policy on land
options per note 25: £910.8m), an incfease of 10.9% over the prior year.

Inventories at 31 October 2021 were £1,039.8m (2020 restated to reflect the change in accounting policy on land options per note
25: £1,025.5m), up 1.4% year-on-year, incorporating a net realisable value provision of £20.9m (2020: £40.6m), which now
predominantly relates to the Group's schemes at Brightwell Yard, Farnham and the Old Vinyl Factory, Hayes. Completed units at 31 .
October 2021 fell to £57.7m (2020: £107.0m). Approximately one-sixth (2020: one-fifth) of the stock of completed units was
represented by show homes.
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CREST NICHOLSON PLC
STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

There has been a material improvement in the Group's defined benefit pension scheme, recognising a retirement benefit surplus in
the year of £16.7m (2020: deficit £13.8m), driven mainly by improved asset returns and funding contributions in the year.

The Company has a robust balance sheet and adequate levéls of funding to trade through any futu‘re}econo’mic uncertainty.

LAND PIPELINE
The contracted land pipeline is summarised in terms of units and gross development value (GDV) as follows:
. 2021 2020
Units? GDV? Em Units? GDVZEm

Short-term housing 14,677 4,482 14,991 4,424
Short-term commercial - ’ 44 - 73
Total short-term 14,677 4,526 14,991 4,497
Strategic land . 22,308 7,308 ! 22724 6,863
* Total land pipeline 36,985 11,834 37,715 11,360

! Units based on management esumates of site capacity. FY21 includes joint venture units at full unit count (2020: Group's share of joint venture
units). FY21 is gresentéd oh an equivalént unit basis which allocates a proportion 6f the unit count for a deal to the land sale element where the deal
contains a land sale (2020: no. equlvalenl unit allocation to land sale element). .

2 Gross development value (GDV) is a managemenl estimate calculated on the basis of @ number of assumplions, for example, assumed sale price,
number of units within the assumed development and the split between open market and affordable housing Lnits, and the obtaining of planning
permission. These are management’s estimates and do not provide assurance as ta the valyation of the Graup's portfalia, Units based on
managemenl estimates of site capacity,

The Group continues to benefit ftom a well-located land portfollo and has a clear strategy of how it intends to generate future value
from these assets. The improvements delivered through the Group's operational efficiency programme are now being reflected in
appraisals for new land, and this coupled with the significantly enhanced balanice sheet position, has enabled the Group to step up’
its activity in the land market during the year. 4,332 plots have been approved for purchase at a forecast gross margin- of 26.7%
(after sales and marketing costs).

The Group's short-ferm land portfolio at 31 October 2021 contained 14,677 (2020: 14,991) plots, representing circa five years of
supply. The associated forecast gross margin of this portfolio increased in the year to £1,145.7m (2020: £829.8m), primarily
because of the NRV reversal referenced above. At the year end the Group held 22,308 (2020 22 724) plots in the strategic land
portfolio, resulting in a total land portfolio of 36, 985 (2020: 37,715) plots.

During the year the Group added 1,510 unitsto the short-term land portfolio and dellvered 2,407 home completions. The ASP of
units within the short-term portfolio, including affordable units and units being sold for private rental, increased to £325,000 (2020:
£295,000), up 10.2% reflecting the effect of the reversal of the NRV provision referenced above, an element of house price inflation
embedded in the portfolio and the change to equivalent unit basis. '

RISK MANAGEMENT
We face a wide variety of risks and uncertainties, some arising from within the Group-and some caused by external factors. There
are some fisks we can plan for and others which may be unexpected ~ in which case we plan for the consequences.

RISK CULTURE

Risk awareness exists through decision making processes and is embedded in systems, policies, leadership, governance and
behaviours. Aligned to our values, we maintain a culture where our colleagues are enmipoweéred to make decisions within agreed
parameters in the delivery of our objectives. We ensure we have the right accountabilities across the Group, maintaining effective
risk-based decision making.

RISK APPETITE AND TOLERANCE

Risk appetite at Crest Nicholson is the amount of risk that the Board is prepared to accept in return for achieving our purpose of
building great places for our customers, communities and the environment. Our appetite for risk is-assessed using our strategy,
guidance from management or advisors and analy5|s of market context and is reviewed throughout the year. In order to achieve its
goals and objectives, the Board takes a prudent view on risk and has an overall risk appetite across its portfolio of risks that reflects
this.

We seek to balance.our risk position between:

— Maintaining a strong focus on health, safety and regulatory compliance matters

— Generating profit and cash through our operations

— Having a balanced portfolio through our Multi Channe! Approach, and being selective in land acquisitions
— Being disciplined in our operational efficiency and Group growth.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
The Group's emerging and principal risks are outlined below. They are monitored by the Executive Leadership Team, the Audit and
Risk Committee and the Board.

Registered no. 1040616
Elassified as General



CREST NICHOLSON PLC .
STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

Emerging risks
Emerging risks have the potential to impact our Group strategy but.currently do not have the ability to be fully defined, or are our

principal risks which afe particularly elevated or increasing in velodity.

Our emerging risks are identified through horizon-scanning by the Executive Leadership Team and Board in relation to industry and
macroeconemic trends. This is supported by our divisional risk review process.

Examples of emerging risks which wére considered during the year are:

COVID-19 pandemic

Given the rising case numbers and variants in the UK:over the winter period we continue to monitor the situation carefully and have.
the appropriate plans in place if there are further G: ment restrictions imposed, including the ability to work in a COVID-19-
secure environment.

Regulatory change

This risk continues to evolve and has several dimensions. It reflects the proposed changes in regulations conceining energy
. efficiency and sustainability, the introduction of the New Homes ‘Ombudsman alongside legacy matters, such as conibusti

materials and building safety. Possible changes to the planaing systems have also been tabled by the Government and may impact

our future tand-acquisitions and new home delivery. In addition, there is-an outstanding cansultation by BEIS in relation to audit and

corporate governance.

Site labour and materials

Material shortage$ and labour availability have challenged our industry and created _==m._o=m2 pressures in some areas. We have
continually monitored the impact of these risks throughout the year and mail ionships with our supply chain
pariners through comprehensive trade agreements. Where appropriate, we have forward ordered am.m:m_m 1o secure supply and
utilised available product alternatives, ensuring quality standards are maintained,

Reputational impact .
Several legacy matters have impacted the pi ion of the h ing sector. If matters continue to :mmm._<m_< impact the
.__.Ecm.Q s earlier so:._m buyers and other mﬁxm:o_uma .there is a potential that this could create a further principal risk.

Changes to our principal risks

As part of the Group's risK reéview processes, some risks have evolved or
been added to.the Group's principal risks! )

— Access to site labour and materials — increasing trend

— Attracting and retaining our skilled people - increasing trend

~increasing trend
— Climate change - néw risk.

Please see further details in Our Principal Risks, overleaf.
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‘CREST NICHOLSON PLC
STRATEGIC REPORT {continued)

Principal risks

1. Epidemic or pandemic from infectious diseases

Risk description

An epidemic or pandemic of an infectious disease may lead lo the
imposition of Government controls on the movement of people.,.
including social distancing, with the cessation of Jarge parts of the

Actions/mitigations
Maintenance of a strong balance sheet able to withstand a sustained
period of complete or pariial cessation of business aclivity.

Mamtenance and regular testing of business continuity and 'disaster
recovery plans supported by mvestment in IT to enable robust home-
working facjlities.

F:ngagemenl with industry bodies to enable construction and home
moving activities to continue.

économy fora slgniﬁcant penod of time. Th:s could lead to:

e  Shortto: medtum term nmpact to cansumer confidence

e Lackof llqundny and/or mortgage availability in the
mortgage market

¢ Disruption to our ability to deliver services fo customers in
the event of supply shortagés and/or widespread loss of
key people (both employees and subcontractors), with
adverse impacts on customer volumes and experience.

Development in the year

The UK Government has removed COVID-19 social distancing
measures following the implementation of its vaccination programme
enabling us to return to normalised construction and home moving
activities. With infection rates ﬂuctuallng, (he dwnsxons are managing
productivity in response to this.

The Board and Executive Committee are aware thal there is also a
potential emerging risk around developing variants and continue to
monitor the situation

carelu_lly.

We have robust procedures and capabiliies to operate through
restrictions that may be reintroduced, developed from the learnt
experiences of the pandemic so far.

'2. Demand for housing,

‘Risk description

A dechne in macroeconomic conditions in the UK, which negalively
impacts the UK resndenual propeny market and reduces the abm(y
for people to buy homes, either lhrough unemployment or low
employment, constraints on morigage availability, or higher

costs of modgage fundmg

Changes 1o regulalions and taxes. for exampte stamp duty land tax
(SDLT) and the impact of Governmenl schemes like Help to Buy;
Equnty Loan (HtB).

Actions/mitigations

We focus on'strategic purchasing of sites, continued development of
shared ownership models and provision of a variely of incentive
schemes.

Forward sales, cash flow and work-in- progress are carefully monitored
to give the Group time to react to changing market conditions. Regutar
sales forecasts and cost reviews to manage potential impact on sales
volumes.

We have an agile and apbroprialély structured organisation to meet
the changing demands within the housebuilding sector,

Our Multi Channel Approach gives us access 1o a range of tenure
options in changing market conditions.

Decreased sales volumes occurring from a drop in housing demand,
could see an increasing number of uhits held as unreserved stock
and part exchange stock with a potential loss realised on final sales.
‘An over-reliance on HtB, which has now been restricted, and other
Govemment-backed ownership schemes 10 boost sales volumes:
and rates. )

Limited land avallability restricling otir ability to meet housing
demand and allow us to grow successtully.

Development in the year

Although demand for housmg remains sirong, there are economic
headwinds arising from the aftermath of COVID-18. R;smg inflation
and increasing energy costs could lead to reduced disposable income
that friay Impact the housing market.

The economic recovery is taking longer to materialise than initially
forecast and khe Government's HtB scheme is now restricted to first-
time buyers with reglonal price caps.

Our operallonal efficiency programme is enabling us to acquire land
more competitively and build more effciently

We conlinue to strengthen our balance sheet g»vung us the resources
to be compétitive in all market scenanos

Registered no. 1040616
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CREST NICHOLSON PLC
STRATEGIC REPORT. (contrnued)

3.'Safety, Health & ér;ﬁren;t;e;((SHE)

Rtsk description
‘A \ signif icant health and satety event could result ina fatality.
serious injury ora dangerous sntuatton 1o an indwrdual

‘Signilicant environmental damage could be caused by operations on
.site or In our offices (for example, water contamination from*
_pollution).

“Lack of recognition of the inipdrta*nce of the wellbeing of ernploye_e_s,
"These incidents or situations could have an adverse efiect on

-our reputation and ability to secure public contracts and/or, if I|tega|
prosecution or sngmr icant financial losses.

Actions/mitigations '
We have strengtheried the safety leadership culture and alignment of
safety and operational peiformance..

i Focus on sirengthening management systems with increased authority for

divisional build managers and Group SHE- advisors to undertake incident
investigations and implement follow up aetions.

Appointment of an external independent safety auditor to conduct regular’
site safety reviews as appropriate and without wammg

Use of Construction Envnronment Risk Assessments and Environmental
Management Plans.

Use of external specialist .consultants and/or contractors wheére specific'
health and safety requirements demand.

Development of health and wellberng roadshows for employees and
rmptementlng flexible or aglle working arrangements to enable employees
to meet both their professional and/orpersonal needs.

Qperational focus at _sit,e. sales an_d ofﬁce locations in response o the
Government's COVID-19 guidance.,

SHE performance is a bonus metric target used.across the Group,
including for’ Executwe Orrectors

Development in the year
Safety performance continues to be'our rumber one priority-and
performance remains stable.

A}

Our new house lype range is redtr_ging build comptexity-an‘d related risks.

We continue to have a rtgorous safety monllorung regrrne with safety
inspeclions at divisional levels, includingan lndependent safely advisory

“firm Lo assist in monitoring site pefformarice:

Safety is embedded in our performance reviews, and we continue to
enhance and develop our SHE policies and procedures.

4. Access to site labour and materials

‘Risk description
Rising production levels across the industry put pressure on our
materials supply chain.

The industry is st'rugétlng to attract the next generation of talent into
skilled trade professions,

There is also a polential reduction in labour availability from the EU:
market.

Increased use of more modern methods of construction could result
in a labour market that no longer.has the knowledge and skills

‘Actlonslmttlgattons

We encourage |onger-term retattonshtps with our suppty chain partners
through Group trading agreements and multlyear subcontractor framework
agreements. These agreements also seek to mitigale price increaseés.

We maintain broad supply chain oplions to spread risk and meet
contingency requirements.

We engage in dralogue with major supplters 10 understand crltrcal supply

“chain risks and respond effectively.

We have developed effective procurement schedules to mitigate supply
challenges.

We consider different construction methads such as timber frame or using
allernative matérials such as concrete bricks.

required to deliver these types of construction projecis. I is also
possible thal the supply chain struggles to maintain capac:ty for new
types of materials.

Given the current UK economic climate and uncertamty there is an
enhanced likelihood of suppliers and subcontractors facing

' Development in the year

Material shortages and labour availability challenges contiriue to impact

.he housebuilding industry and ihis has led to inflationary pressures in \he

year

We continue to work with our supply chain partners to maxtmlse our use of

insolvency.
trade agreements and supply of avallable tabour
‘Where possible and appropriate we forward order materials to secure
supply and also utilise alternative products if lhey are avarlabte and it is
appropriate to do so.
Registered no.. 1040616
Elassified a5 General




CREST NICHOLSON PLC
STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

5. Customer service and quality

Risk description )

Customer service and build quality falls below our required
standards, resulling in a reduclion of reputation and trust, which
could impact sales ratés and volumes.

U'nforeseen product safety, qualily issues or latent defects emerge
due to new.construction methods.

Failure to effectively implement new regulations on build quality and
respond to emerging technologies.

Actions/mitigations )

The updated straiegy focuses on enhancing build quality, maintaining a
five-star customer satisfaction rating and'a retained commitment to
excellent placemaking.

We have enhanced our quality and build stage inspections to monitor
adherence to our quality standards.

We have a clear strategy and action plan for addressing legacy
combustible materials risk and have made a further provision in our
FY21 financial statements.

We have a new house lype range that reduces complexity and drives
improvements in quality.

Customer satisfaction and quality performance Is a bonus metric target
used across thie Group, Including for Executive Directors.

Development in the.year ) -

Excellent customer service is one-of our strategic priorities, embedding a
‘Aght fifst time' €ulture that focuses on the delivery of our homes and after
sales services. We have a strong brand and continue to be rated as a five-
star housebuilder by the Home Builders Federation (HBF).

6. Bulld cost management

Risk description

Build cost inflation and unforeseen cost incréases driven by
demands in the supply chain or failure to implement adequate cost
control systems.

.Lack of awareness and understanding of external factors that may
impact build costs including complex planning permissions and
emerging sustainability and environmental regulations:

Actions/mitigations

We benchimark our cosls against existing sites to ensure our rates remain
competitive. We buitd and maintain strong relationships with our suppliers
and seek to obtain volume purchasing benefits.

We operate a fair and competitive tender for works process and we are
committed to paying our suppliers and subcontractors promptly.

There are rigorous and regular divisional build cost review processes and
site-based qualily reviews.

We continue to monitor alternative sources of supply where possible and
utilise alternative production methods or matenals where it is appropriate
to do so,

A lack of quaiily in the build process could expose the Group to
increased costs, reduced selling prices and volumes, and impact our
reputation. :

Development in the year

Operational Efficiency is one of the‘Group's strategic priorities and the
Executive Leadership Team routinely reviews build cost movements at
both a Group and divisional level.

The implementation of COINS as our new ERP plalform will enhance the
reporting of build costs across the Group.

.Regi‘stereq no. 1040616
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7. Information security and business contlnulfy

'_ Risk descrlpﬁon
Cyber security risks such as data breaches and hacking Ieadlng

Actions/mitigations

We employ network security measures and intrusion detection monitoring,
including virus protechon onall computers and servers, and carry out
annual secunly-breach tests. We utilise customer relationship
management systems for storing senstlwe data to prevent negligent

‘misuse by employees.

This is complemented by:
— Employee training on data protechon and internet securlly
— 'Data classificafion, retention policies and toolsets' wnlh appropnale and
responsive procedures embeédded to respond to data privacy malters
— IT disastéer recovery and business continuity plans.

to the loss of operational systems, market- senslllve |nformat|on or
other critical data which compromlses compllance wilh data privacy
requirements.

*This could resuit in a higher risk of fraud. financial penalties and an
impact to reputation.

Development in the year
The threat of external cyber security risk is ever present, and we routinely
experlence phishing attempts on our IT systems.

We continue to utilise 8 Security Operations Centre’ (SOC) to monitor our
nétworks and have enhanced our securlly policies and procedures with
further training for employees.

We regularly perform phishing training and mock exercises to hnghlighl the
risks across the Group

The established Data and Cyber Security Sub-Board,.chaired by the Group
Finance. Director, coptinues to monitor threats and develops appropriate
policigs and procedures.

8. Attracting and retaining our skilled people

Risk description
An increasing skills gap.in the industry at all levels resu!lmg in
difficulty with recruiting the right and diverse mix of people for
vacant positions,

Actions/mitigations ’
Employee engagement survey, supporled by pulse surveys, to enable the
Executnve Leadership Team to understand and support concerns raised by
our people.

Continual focus on fmproving f!exlble’and agile working arrangements
to support employees.

ProQ'fa"mm_es of work to develop robust succession plans and improve
diversity across the business.

Providing quality training and professional development opportunities
through our entry-level training programmes.

We monitor pay structures and market trends to ensure we remain
compemlve .

Employee turnover and r_e_qui_r'emepl lo_@nqpcl _anc_'i embed new
employees, alongside the cost of wages increasing as a result of
inflated offers in the market.

Loss of knowledge within the Group which could result in
inefficiencies, productivity loss, delays to business operations.
increasing cosls -and an overuse or reliance on consultants and the
supp(y chain, .

Developmem in the year
Our industry continues to face a skills shortage and there is an increased
demand for employees.

To address this, we provide competilive salary packages, reflecting market
rates and offer a wide range of career development opportunities. We \
continue to monnor employee lurnover and review employee feedback
through engagement surveys.

' During the year we launched a new employee induction pragramme and

have made further improvements to out Iearnmg and development
programme across the Group. .

We engage with our employees through a variety of communications
and forums,

We have doubled our trainees and we have increased resourcing to
address specific legacy issues.

Registered no. 10406716.
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9. Solvency and liquidity

Risk descriptuon !

Cash generation for the Group isa key part of our updated strategy,
and our cash héadroom could be affected by economic pressures.
lhat resultin delayed recemls and potentlally Iower sales in me shon
to medium tefm.

Commitments {o significant land and build obligations that afe made
ahead of revenue cerlainty.

Fall in sales during economic slowdown and lacl\ of available debt
finance.

Reductions in margins as average sell]ng price lélls unabllity to
reslruclure appropriately and unsustainable levels of work-in-

Actlonslmitlgatlons -
Cash generalion is a key focus for the.Executive Leadershup Team. Cash
performance is measured against forecast with a variance analysis issued
weekly by the Group Treasurer. Cash performance is also considered at

divisional board level.

We scrutinise the cash terms of land transactions. anate Rented Sector
{PRS)and bulk sales also offer us the potenhal for early cash mﬂow

The Group has avallable the usé of a £250m revalving credit facllity (RCF)
which was unused lhroughoul, FY21.

We generany con\rol stralegnc\and rather than own it it and have limited

capital tied up on the balance sheet, These sites are subject to regular
review and appraisal beforé being drawn down.

Cash ‘management is a bonus metric target used atross the Group,
including for Executive Directors.

. progress.

To reflect the cyclical nalure of housebuilding and following the
Global Financial Crisis, equity investors in housebuilders now expect;
 a lower risk investment proposﬂ!on by way of a more capitalised and
; robust balance sheet,

Development in the year
The balance sheet has been transformed, aided significantly by the
divestment of our interest in the Longcross Film Studio for £46m.

‘ Diverse sources of finance are in place with £100m of senior notés

matdring 2024-29 and a £250m RCF expiring in 2024.

We have maintained operalional capital disciptine and elfectvve
managemem of cash, rnargln and return on capital employed.

+10. Laws, policies and regulations \

*Risk description

This risk i$ two-fold, both changes to upcoming regulations and

combustible materials.

Upcoming regulations and guidance

_Future regulatory changes could impact our abilily lo make medium
and longer-term decisions. The planning environment continues

to evolve. The lnterprelallon of the National Planning Policy -
vFramework continues to develop in an environment where local
authorities and public sector resources are constrained.

Failure to effectively implement new environmenlal regulations

including the Future Homes Standard (FHS) and the Environment

Act 2021, New Homes Ombudsman, BEIS consultation on audit

reform and cofporate governance and the developments from the
néw Building Safety Act.

Actionslmltlgatlons

- We éngage with'the Governmenl dureclly and through the HBF, via vanous
memberships of industry groups and build relationships in key locai
authorily areas.

We contlnue lo assess and plan for emerging regulahon and developments

Combustible materials

During 2019 the Group established robust controls and processes in
respect of combustible materials. Since that time these have been
overseen by a regular review meeting which is attended by the Chief,
Executive, Group Finance Director and the internal project team
responsuple for thls area The forum rewews a detailed risk reglsler of all
schemes under review. mcludmg any recent customer, or other affected
stakeholder, correspondence and considers how the Group may chodse lo
respond. In addition, the forum assesses whether faulty workmanship or
design was a factor in the potenlial remedial works, and if appropriate
seeks to recover these costs direclly from the subconiractor or consultant
mvolved or through engagement of external legal counsel.

Combustible materials .
Failure to plan and implement the guidance notes issued by the
Government in respect of combustible materials and fire safety.
This is a complex area where il is often difficult to identify and
imptement remediés quickly. The rapidly changing landscape of
regutatory guidance and need to-engage w/ith multiple’stakeholders

contribute to this complexity as does the limited availabilily of
qualiﬁed resource to oversee work performed.

Development in the year

The pace of regulatory reform is uncreasmg We are well developed in.
planmng for the requirements arising from the FHS and other new and
emerging regulations such as the BEIS consultation on audit reform and
corporate governance.

We undertake close Government consultation regarding the New Homes
Ombudsman and have developed plans for potential changes.

We were also in close consullation regardmg the new Residential Property
Developer Tax which will be introduced in April 2022.

We continue to monitor and review our combusiible materials provisioning.

Registered no. 1040616
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11. Climate change

Risk description

The Group will need to further enhance its sustainable practices and
processes as we transition to a carbon "net zéro"business by 2050
at the very latest and continue to meet evolving Government
regulations,

We will need to adapt to physical.climate changes and the nsks that
this presents to the Group'and our operational sites.

Acﬂonslmitlgatlons
Through our Sustamabxhly Committee, chaired by our ‘Chief Executive, we
assess climate related risks and opporlunmes on an ongoing basis.

We have existing targets to reduce our scope 1 and 2 greenhouse gas
emissions intensity by 25% by 2025 (2019 base year).”

We have signed up to the Business Ambition for 1.5°C, which aims to
limit global temperature fise 10 1.,5°C above pre—mdusmal levels.

We also commii to achieving net zero emissions across our value
'¢hain by no later than 2050."We plan to transition to exclusive

use of renewable electricity which will lead to a significant reduction of
emnssnons through our day-to- day operallons

We are members of the Future Homes Hub; an industry-wide initiative to
‘support the implementalion of the Future Homes Delivery Plan to méet’
climate and environmental targets. We also have internal workstreams o
plan for new regulations, including lhe FHS.

We will also need to consider any potentigl climate-related risk’in,
our land acquisitions,

Failure to miiigate these risks from clxmale change could impact our
reputation with key stakeholders:

Development in the year

During the year we have continued to plan for the FHS and are an active
member of the Future Homes Hub. Potential costs of the FHS are
embedded in our divisional plans.

We have reduced scope 1 and 2 carbon emissions intensity by 21%
‘compared to our base year of 2019. We have.increased the use of
renewable electricity to 62% (2020: 56%).

We became a signatory of the Busmess Ambition for 1.5°C and joined the
United Nations-backed Race to Zero.

We made a commitment to sel new targeéts that will be validated by the
Science Based Targets initiative.

We continue to assess our progress against the Task Force on-Climate
related Financlal Disclosures (TCFD) recommendahons :and achieved a
COP rating of B.

CREST NICHOLSON PLC
STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The main risks associated with the Group’s financial instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk and interest rate risk. The
Board is responsible for managing these risks and the polnues in place to manage this_risk are disclosed within.note 21 of these.

finapcial slatements

THE SECTION 172 STATEMENT

From the perspective of the board, as a result of-the Group governance structure (whereby the entity board is embedded within the
Group board), the matters that it is-responsible for considering undeér Section 172 of the Companies Act 2006 ('s172") have been
considered to an appropriate extent by t the Group board in relation both to the Group and to this entity. The board has also considered
relevant matters where appropriate. To the extent necessary for an understandmg of the development, performance and position of
the entity, an explanation of how the Group board has considered the matters set out in s172 (for the Group and for the entity) is set
out on page 80 of the Group's annual integrated report, which does not form part of this report.

THE ROLE OF INTERNAL AUDIT

The business has outsourced its internal audit function, its work programme is designed (and flexed) to take account of the key risks
identified by the business, as an extension of the general remit of the function to support the achievement of the Gréup’s financial

and operational objeclives.

Approved by the Board and signed by its order by:

o
iy

D Cooper
Director

Crest House
Pyrcroft Road
Chertsey

Surrey KT16 SGN
17 February 2022 .
-Registered no. 1040616
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CREST NICHOLSON PLC
DIRECTORS' REPORT

The Directors present their report and the audited Consolidated Financial Statements and Company Financial Statements for the
year ended 31 October 2021. Crest Nicholson plc (the ‘Company’) is a public company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled
in England and Wales. The address of the registered office is Crest House, Prycroft Road, Chertsey, Surrey, England. The immediate
parent company is Castle Bidco Limited, which is incorporated in Great Britain and registered in England and Wales. The largest higher
Group of undertakings for which Group financial statements are drawn up, and ultimate parent Company is that headed by Crest
Nicholson Holdings plc, which is incorporated in Great Britain and registered in England and Wales. Copies of its Group financial
statemenls can be obtained from the Company's registered office.

DIRECTORS WHO HELD OFFICE

The Directors during the year, and up to the date of signing the financial statements were:
Peter Truscott

Duncan Cooper

Tom Nicholson

David Marchant

It is the Company’s practice to indemnify its Directors and Officers to the extent permitled by law and the Articles of Association
against all costs, charges, losses, expenses and liabilities incurred in connection with any negligence, default, breach of duty or trust
and any other liability incurred in the execution of their duties. In addition, the Company maintains qualifying third-party Directors' and
Officers’ liability insurance for the Directors and Company Secretary.

STRATEGIC REPORT
Certain disclosures required under the CA2006 to be included within the Directors’ Report have been presented within the Strategic

Report to avoid duplication.

GOING CONCERN

The Company is the parent company of the principal trading entity of the group ultimately headed by Crest Nicholson Holdings pic
(the 'Group'). The Company and certain of its subsidiaries are cross-guarantors to the debt facilities of the Group. Accordingly, the
Directors have considered the Group's position for the purposes of assessing the use of the going concern basis.

The Directors are satisfied that the Group has sufficient resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable future. The Directors,
reviewed detailed financial forecasts, and covenant compliance covering the year to 31 October 2022, and summary financial
forecasts for the following two years, and the ultimate parent undertaking intends to provide such funds and financial support to enable
the Company for at least twelve months from the date the board approved these financial statements to trade and meet its liabilities
as they fall due. For these reasons, the Directors consider it appropriate to prepare the financial statements of the Company on a
going concern basis.

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES
The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
regulation.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the directors have prepared
the group financial statements in accordance with international accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006 and company financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice
(United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework”, and applicable law).

Under company law, directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the group and company and of the profit or loss of the group for that period. In' preparing the financial
statements, the directors are required to:

« select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

o state whether applicable international accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006
have been followed for the group financial statements and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101
have been followed for the company financial statements, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the
financial statements;

» make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and

e prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis uniess it is inappropriate to presume that the group and company
will continue in business. *

The directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the group and company and hence for taking reasonable steps for
the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the group's and
company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the group and company and
enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006.

Registered no. 1040616
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CREST NICHOLSON PLC
DIRECTORS’ REPORT (contlnued)r

‘DIRECTORS' CONFIRMATIONS
In the case of each director in office at the date the directors’ report is approved:

= so far as:the director is aware, there is no relevant.audit.information of which the group's and company's auditors are
unaware; and .

. they have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a director in order to make themselves aware of any relevant;
audit rnformatron and to establrsh that the group's and company's auditors are aware of that information.

DONATIONS

During the year the Group madeé donations to charities of £11,000 (2020 £13,000). Employees have continued to support the Group's . -

nominated charity, The Variety ‘Ciub, andiraised £20,000 for this cause during the year (2020: £81:000). There were:no political
.donations made (2020: £nil). - -

EMPLOYMENT POLICY

Crest Nicholson plc values equality and dwersrty in employment and we sélect and’ promote employees based on their aptitudes and

abilities, not their sex, sexual orientation, marital status, race, nationality, ethnic or national origin; age or disability. Everyone is different-
and has somethmg unrque to offer. Our Equalrty and Drversity Polrcy ensures that all employees and job applrcanls are aworded equal

and developmg the drversrty of our: workforce Where employees have of, develop pamcular lon'g( term health issues or disabilities, the
'Group works with those employees to ‘ensure their role, skills and development opportunities remain suitable and approprrate for their

circumstances so that they can continue and progress in their employment with the Group. The Group provides employees with rélevant
‘business updates and other information, and consults with employees to understand their views.

We also encourage employees mvolvement in the Group S performance through'share schemes or other means and promote common
awareness of the financial and économic factors affectrng performance The Group interacts with its employees through the appropriate
levels of management and seeks employees oprnrons about the Group's operations and behaviour through internal feedback and staff’
-surveys.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT WITH EMPLOYEES .

From the perspectrve ‘of the ‘board, asa result of the Group governance structure (whereby the entity board is embedded within the

Group board), the Group board has taken the lead in carrying out the duties of a board in respect of the company's-employees, including
' engaging with them,. having'regard-to their interests ‘and the effeel of t[ra}. regard (mcludlng on the prrncrpal decrsrons taken by the

company, during the financial year). The board of the company has also considered relevant matters where appropriate. An explanation

of how the Group board has carried out these responsibilities (for the Group and for the entity) is set out on pages 53 to 55 of the Group's

‘annual rntegrated report, which does not form part of this report.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT WITH OTHERS'

Srmrlarly. from the perspectrve of the board as a result of the Group governance structure (whereby the enhly board is embedded within
the Group board), the Group board has taken the lead in carrying outthe duties of a board in respect of the company s other stakeholders.
The board of the company has also considered relevanl ma(ters where approprlate ‘An explanation of how the directors on the Group
board have had regard to the needto foster the company's business relationships with suppliers, customers and others, and the effect
of that regard, including on the principal decisions taken by the company during the financiat year, is set out (for the Group and for the

entity) on pages 44 to 47 of the Group's annual integrated report,; which does not form part of this report.

'INDEPENDENT AUDITORS.
The auditors, PricewaterhouséCoopers LLP, have indicated their.willingness to continue'in office and a resolution concerning their
_re-appointment will be proposed at the Annual Genera! Meeting.

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by:
O
—
D Cooper
Director

‘Crest House
‘Pyrcroft Road
.Chertsey

‘Surrey KT16 9GN
17 February 2022
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CREST NICHOLSON PLC
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF CREST NICHOLSON PLC

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion

In our .opinion:

» Crest Nicholson plc's group financial statements and company financial slatements (the “financial statements”) give a true and fair
view of the state of the group’s and of the company’s affairs as at 31 October 2021 and of the group's profit and the group's cash
flows for the year then ended;

« the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with international accounting standards in conformity with
the requirements of the Companies Act 2006’

« the.company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework”, and applicable law); and

« the financial statements have been prepared m accordance with the requirements -of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report, and Financial Statements (the "Annual Report”). which
comprise: the Consolidated and Company Statements of Financial Position as at 31-October 2021; the Consolidated Income Statement
and Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and the Consolidated and Company
Statements of Changes in Equity for the year then ended and the notes to the ﬁnanccal statements, which include a description of the
significant accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with'International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“ISAs (UK)") and applicable law. Our responsibilities
under ISAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the fi financial statements section of our report. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

independence

We remained independent of the group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in the UK. which includes the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibililies in accordance with
these requirements.

Conclusions relating to going concern

Based on the work we have performed, we have not ideptified any material unceriainties relating to events or conditions that, individually or
collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group's and the company’s ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least
twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation
of the financial statements is appropriate.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this conclusion is not a guarantee as to the group's and the
company's ability to continue as a going concern.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to geing concern are described in the relevant sections of this
report. -

Reporting on other information

The other.information comprises all of the information in the Annual Repon other than the financial statements and our auditors’ report
thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the othér
information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit apinion or, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this repont, any form
of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge oblained in the audit, or othenvisé appears to
be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material inconsistency -or material misstatement, we are required to perform procedures
to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If,
based on the work we have performed we conclude that there is a. material misstatement of this other information, we are required to

. ‘With respect to the Strategic report and Directors' Report, we also considered whether the disclosures required by the UK Companies Act
2006 have been included.

Based on our work underiaken in the course of the audil, the Companies Act 2006 requires us also to report certain opinions and matters
.as described below. .

Strategic report and Directors' Report :

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic report and Directors' Report
for the year ended 31 October 2021 is consistent with the financial stalements and has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and company and their environment obtained in the course of the audit, we did
not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic report and Directors’ Report.

Registered no. 1040616
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CREST NICHOLSON PLC ) ) .
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF CREST NICHOLSON PLC (continued)

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of directors’ responslbllltles set out on page 13, the directors are responsible for the preparation of,
the financial statements in accordance with the appllcable framework .and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. The
directors are also responsuble for such internal control as lhey determiine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material mlsslatemenl ‘whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the company's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as appllcable matters related to going concern and using the going concern baslis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the group or the company or to cease operalions, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance-is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it éxists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably- be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures i:'n line with our
responsibilities.-outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our
procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is defailed below.

Based on our underslanding of the group and industry, we.identified that the principal fisks of non-compliance wilh laws and regulations

related to government guidelines on fire safety and other health and safety requiremenits; and employment law, including legislation rélating

to pensions, and we considered the extent. to which noh-compliance might have a material effect on the ﬁnancual statements. We also

considered those laws and regulations that have a direct impact on the financial statements such as the Companies Act 2006. We

evaluated management's incentives and opporunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial statements {including the risk of override

of controls), and determined that the principal risks were related to management bias, in particular in-areas of estimation un¢eédainty as set

out in note 1 to the financlal statements. Audit procedures performed by the engagement team included: ’

« Discussions with the management, review of the Group's internal audit reports and consideration of known or su5pecled instances of
non-compliance with laws and regulation and fraud;

« Evaluatioh and testing of the operaling effectiveness of management's controls designed to prevent and detect irregularities, in
particutar their controls around cost and margin forecasting;

. Challengmg the assumptions and judgements made by management in determining their significant accounting estimates, in particular
in relation to cost forecasting, margin estimation and provisions; and

« Identifying and testing journal entries, in particular any journal entries posted with unusual account combinations including unusual or
unexpected journal postings to the consolidated income statement

There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above. We are less likely to become aware of instances of non-compliance
with laws and regulations thal are not closely related to events and transactions reflected in the financial statements. ‘Also, the risk of not
‘detecling a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of.not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery or intenlional misrepresentations, or through collusion,

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's website at:
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors' report.

‘Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for.and only for lhe company's members as a body in accordance with Chapter 3-of
Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no olher purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any
other purpose or to any other person to' whom this report is shown or intc whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our
prior ‘consent in writing. . ’

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

« we have not obtained all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us,; or

* certain disclosures of directors’' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

o the company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

‘We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

i Ay

Darryl Phillips (Senior Statutory Auditor).

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statulory Auditors
London

17 February 2022
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CREST NICHOLSON PLC ,
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 October 2021

-

2020

2021 2021 2021 2020 2020
Pre- Exceptional Total Pre- Exceptional Total
-exceptional items exceptional ‘items
items “(note 4) items (note 4)
Note £m £m £m £m £m £m
_Reévenue ' 3 786.6 - 786.6 677.9 - 677.9
Cost of sales ) (625.8) (20.8) {646.6) (572.4) (48.3) (620.7)
Gross profit/(loss) 160.8 {(20.8) 140.0 105.5 (48.3) 57.2
Administrative expenses {49.6) - (49.6) (49.0) (7.5) (56.5)
Net impairment losses on financial 16 (1.0) - (1.0) (0.3) (7.6) (7.9)
-assets.
Operating profit/{loss) 5 7110.2 (20.8) 89.4 56.2 (63.4) (7.2)
Finance income 7 9.2 s 9.2 3.3 - 3.3
Finance expense 7 (4.3) 0.5 (3.8) (8.3) (0.5) (8.8)
Net finance income/(expense) 7 4.9 0.5 5.4 (5.0) {0.5) (5.5)
Share of post-tax profits/(losses) of 12 1.7 - 1.7 {0.5) - (0.5)
joint ventures using the equity
method
Profit/(loss) before taxation 116.8 (20.3) 96.5 50.7 (63.9)  (13:2)
Income tax (expense)/credit 8 (18.3) 3.9 {14.4) (9.3) 124 2.8
Rrafitlkloss) for the financial 98.5 (16.4) 82.1 414 (51.8) (10.4)
year
The notes on pages 21 to 60 form part of these financial statements.-
CREST NICHOLSON PLC
‘CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 October 2021
' 2021 2020
‘Note £m £m
Profit/(loss) for the financial year 82.1 {10.4)
Other comprehensive incomel/(expense):
items that will not be reclassified to the consolidatéd income statement:
Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined benefit schemes 15 20.2 (13.8)
Change in deferred tax on actuarial gains/(losses) of defined benefit schemes 14 (4.8) 27
Other comprehensive income/(expense) for the year net qf'incqme tax 154 (11.1)
Total comprehensive income/(expense) 97.5 (21.5)

The notes'on pages 21 to 60 form part of these financial statements.
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CREST NICHOLSON PLC -
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended 31 October 2021

Share Capital Capital
Share premium redemption contribution Retained Total
Note capital account reserve reserve earnings  equity
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Full year ended 31 October 2020
Balance at 1 November 2019 - 11,5 65.3 38.0, 15.0 807.9 937.7
originally reported
Change. in accounting policy < fand - - - - (5.9) (5.9)
options ) o
Balance at 1 November 2019 - 11.6 65.3 38.0 15.0 802.0 9318
restated’
Loss for the financial year attributable to - - - - (10:4) {(10.4)
equity shareholders
Actuarial losses of defined benefit 15 - - - - (13.8) (13:8)
schemes
Change in deferred tax on actuarial 14 - - - - 2.7 2.7
lossés of défined benefit schemes o
. Total comprehensive expense for the - - - - {21.5) {21.5)
year
“Transactions with
shareholders:
Equity-settled share-based 15 - - - - 0.5 0.5
payments
Balance at 31 October 2020 15 65.3 38.0 " 15,0 781.0  910.8
Full year endéd 31 October 2021
Balance at 1 November 2020 - 11.5 65.3 38.0 15.0 7869  916.7
originally repoited ' .
Change in accounting policy ~ land - - - - (5.9) (5.9)
options ) i .
Balance at 1 November 2020 - 1.6 65.3 38.0 15.0 781.0 910.8
restated’
Profit for the financial year altributable to - - - 82.1 821
equity shareholders
Actuarial gains of defined benefit 15 - - - - 20.2 20.2
schemes
Change in deferred tax on.actuarial gains 14 S - - - (4.8) (4.8)
of defined benefit schemes
Total comprehensive income for the - - - - 97.5 97.5
year ' .
Transactions with shareholders:
Equily-settled share-based payments 15 - - - - 1.8 1.8
Deéferred tax on equity-setlled share- 14 - : - - 0.1 0.1
based payments ‘
Balance at 31 October 2021 ‘ 11.5° 65.3 38.0 15.0 ‘880.4 1,010.2

' Restated to refiect the change Ih'accounting palicy on land oplions. See note 25.

The notes on pages 21 to 60 form part of these financial statements.
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CREST NICHOLSON PLC —
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 October 2021

. Restated’
ASSETS Note S 2021 2020
' ' £m £m
Non-current assets '
Property, plant and equipment 10 1.2 2.0
Right-of-use assets 1" 37 6.0
Investments 12 68 . 37
Financial assets ‘at fair value through profit arid los§ 13 : 4.2 4.6
Deferred tax assets . 14 3.0 6.4
Retiremenit bénefit surplus 15 16.7 -
Tradé and othier receivables 16 44.6 55.6
80.2 78.3
Current assets o N
Inveritories ) . N b4 1,039.8 1,025.5
Financial assets at fair value through prpﬂi and loss . 13 11 0.8
Trade and other receivablés ‘ 16 368.6 197.4
Current income tax receivable 5.8 3.4
Cash-and cash equivalents. 52.4 41.5
1,467.7 1,268.6
Total assets ’ : . 1,547.9  _ _ 1,346.9
LIABILITIES
Non-currenit liabilities
Tradé and other payables 18 {73.5) (81.8)
Lease liabilities 1 (2.7) (a.7)
Deferred tax liabilities 14 (4.1) -
Retirement benefit-obligations 15 < (13.8)
Provisions 19 (28.4) (3.4)
(108.7). __ (103.7)
Current liabilities . T
Trade and other payables. 18 (412:4) (318.3)
Lease liabilities ' . " (1.9) (2.3)
Current iricome tax lidbilities . ‘ - :
" Provisions ’ ' 19 (14.7) {(11.8)
(4200) (33214)
Total liabilities . . (531.7) © (436.1)
Net assets 1,010.2 ~ 910.8.
EQUITY .
Share capital 20 11.5 11.5
Sharé premium account : 65.3 65.3
Capital redemption reserve 38.0 38.0
Capital contribution reserve 15.0 15.0
+ Retained earings 880.4 781.0
Total equity - ' . 1,010.2 910.8

! Restated to reflect the chiange In accounting policy on 1and options. See note 25,

The notes on pages 21 to 60 form part of these financial statements.

‘The financial statements an pages 17 to 60 were approved by the Board of Directors on 17 February 2022 and signed on its behalf by:

e
FR):

D Cobper
Directlor

‘ Registered no: 1040616
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CREST NICHOLSON PLC
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 October 2021

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit/(loss) for the financial year attributable to°equity shareholders
Adjustments for:
Depreciation on propérty, plant and equipment
Depreciation on fight-of-use assets
Net finance (income)/expense
Share-hased payment expense
Share of post-tax (profits)/iosses of joint ventures using the equity method
Impairment of inventories ’
‘Net impairment of financial assets
income tax expense/(credit)
Operating profit before changes in working capital, provisions and
contributions to retirement benefit obligations:
Increase in trade and other receivables
Decrease in inventories .
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables
Contribution to retirement benefit obligations
Cash generated from operations

Finance expense paid
Income tax paid
Net cash inflow from operating activities

Cash flows from invésting activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment
Disposal of financial assets at fair valué’ through profit and loss
Funding to joint ventures
Repayment of funding from joint ventures
Finance income received
Net cash inflow/(outflow) generated from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities
Repayment of other borrowings
Principal elements of lease payments

Net cash outflow from financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

v

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

The notes on pages 21 to 60 form part of these financial statements.
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Note 2021 2020
£m £m

82.1 (10.4)

10 1.0 4.4
1 2.4 2.7
7 (5.4) 5.5
15 1.8 0.5
12 (1.7) 0.5
17 119.7) 304
16 1.0 7.9
-8 14.4 (2.8)
75.9 38.7

(158.4) (57.0)

5.4 101.9

110.9 (66.5)

{11.2) (6.7)

226 10.4

(0.4) (4.6)

(13.9) (1.6)

8.3 4.2

(0.2) (0.3)

1.0 1.3

{13.0) (15.6)

11.5 10.1

6.0 0.2

5.3 {4.3)

- (1.9)

11 (2.7) (2.9)
(2.7) (4.8)

10.9 (4.9)

41.5 46.4

23 52.4 41.5

20
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CREST.NICHOLSON PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation )

Crest Nicholson pic (the 'Company’) is a public company limited by shares, incorporated and domiciled in the UK. The address of the
registered office is Crest House, Prycroft Road, Chertsey, Surrey, England. The Group financial statements consolidate those of the
Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the ‘Group') and include the Group's interest in jointly controlled entities. The
parent Company financial statements present information about the Company as a separate entity and not about its Group.

The financial statements are presented in pounds sterling and amounts stated are denominated in millions (Em). The functional
currency of the Company is considered to be pounds sterling because that is the currercy of the primary economic environment in
which it operates. The accounting policies set out below have; unless otherwise stated, been applied consistently to all years
presented in these Group financial statements.

The Group financial statements have been prepared and approved by the Directors in accordance with international accounting
standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, and international financial reporting standards (IFRS)
adopted pursuant to Regulation (EC) No 1606/2002 as it applies in the European Union, and have been prepared on the historical
cost basis except for financial assets at fair value through profit and loss, which are as otherwise stated. In future periods the
financial statements will be- prepared in accordance with UK-adopted international accounting standards. There is no difference
currently to the Group preparing the consolidated financial statements on either basis. The parent company financial statements are
presented on pages 61 to 70.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the Directors to make assumptions and judgements that
affect the application of pohcxes and reported amounts within the financial statements. Assumptions and judgements are based on
experience and other factors that the Directors consider reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these
estimates..

Judgements made by the Directors, in the application of these accountmg policies that have significant effect on the financial
statements and estimates With a significant risk of material adjustment in the next year are discussed below.

Crest Nicholson plc and its subsidiaries are part of the Group headed by Crest Nicholson Holdings plc (“the Crest Nicholson Group).
The Company and certain of its subsidiaries are cross-guarantors to the debt facilitiés of the Crést Nicholson Group. Accordingly, the
Directors have considered that the Crest Nicholson Group'’s position for the purposes of assessing the use of the going concern basis.

The Directors are satisfied that the Crest Nicholson Group has sufficient resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable future.
The Directors reviewed detalled financial forecasts, and covenant compliance covering the year to 31 October 2022, and summary
“financial forecasts for the following two years, and the ultimate parent undertaking intends to provide such funds and financial support
to enable the Company for at least twelve months from the date the board approved these financial statements to trade and meet its
liabilities as they fall due. For these reasons, the Directors consider it appropriate to prepare the financial statements of the Company
and Group on a going concern basis.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements under IFRS requires the Directors to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the appllcatuon of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses and related disclosures. In
applying the Group's accounting policies, the key judgements that have a significant impact on the financial statements, include
those involving estimates which are described below, the judgement to present certain itéms as exceptional {see note 4), and
certain revenue policies relating to part exchange sales, the identification of performance obligations where a revenue transaction
involves the sale of both land and residential units and fevenue on the units is then subsequently recognised over time- and the
recognition of the defined benefit pension scheme surplus (see note 15).

Estimates and associated assumptions affecting the financial statements are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Changes in accounting estimates may be necessary if there are changes in the circumstances on which the
estimate was based or as a result of new information.

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the year in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that year, or
in the year of revision and future years if the revision affects both current and future years.

The Directors have made estimates and assumptions in reviewing the going concern assumption as detailed above. The Directors
consider the key sources of estimation uncertainty that have a risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying value of assets
and liabilities as described below:

Registered no. 1040616
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CREST NICHOLSON PL.C
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Carrying value of inventories

inventories of work-in-progress, completed buildings including show homes and part exchange inventories are stated in the
consolidated statemient of financial position at the lower of cost and net réalisable value (NRV). On a monthly basis management
update estimates-of future revenue and expenditure for each development Future revenue and expenditure may differ from
estimates which could lead to an mpa»rment of inventory if there are adverse changes. Where forecast revenues are lower than
forecast expenditure an inventory provision is made. This provision may be reversed in subsequent periods if there is evidence of
improved revenue or reduced expenditure forecast on a development. [f forecast revenue was 10% lower on sites within the short-
terr portfolio as at 31 Oclober 2021, the impact on profit before tax and inventories would have been £10.9m lower (2020:
£27.7m).

Estimation of development profitability

Due to the nature of development actwlty and, in particular, the length of the development cycle, the Group has to make estimates
of the costs to complete developmenls in particular those which are multi-phase and/or may have srgmﬁcant infrastructure costs.
These estimates are reflected in the margin recognised on developments. in.relation to sales recognised in the current and future
years. There is a degree of inherent uncertainty in making such estimates. The Group has estabiished internal controls that are
designed to ensure an effective assessment of estimates is made of the costs to complete developments. The Group considers
estimates of the costs to complete on longer-term sites, which typically have higher up front shared infrastructure costs to have
greater estimation uncertainty than sites of shorter duration with less infrastructure requirements. If forecast costs were 10% higher
on sites which contributed to the.year ended 31 October 2021 and which are forecast to still be in production beyond the year
ending 31 October 2023 {2020: beyond the year ending 31 October 2022), profit before tax in the current year would have been
£12.8m lower (2020: £19.0m lower).

The Group has considered the potential financial impacts associated with transitional and physical climate-related risks and
opportunities. The Future Homes Standard (FHS), due to be mplemented from 2025, which is expected to increase build cost for
individual units. The anticipated addmonal build cost has been included in new project acquisition appraisals since the FHS was
announced. Projects already underway will be substantlally built out before the new regulations commence. Itis not expected that
the additional build cost will have a material impact on the-carrying value of inventories or their associated project margins.

In determming the valuation of the pensron scheme assets and Ilabnlmes the Directors utilise the services of an actuary. The
actuary uses key assumptions being.inflation rate, life expectancy. discount rate, pension growth rates and Guaranteed Minimum
Pensions, which are dependent on factors outside the control of the Group. To the extent that such assumptions differ to that
expected, the pension liabilty would change. Sée note 15 for additional details,

Combustible materials

The combustible materials provision requires a number of key estimates and judgements in its calculation. If |t is deemed that the
costs are probable and can be reliably measured then, as per IAS 37, a provision is recorded. If costs are considered possible or
cannot be reliably estimated then they are recorded as contingent liabilities (see noté:22), The key judgements include but are not
limited to identification of the properties impacted through the period of construction considered, the time-period to consider and
which properties should then be included. The key estimates then applied to these properties include the potential costs of
investigation, replacement materials, works to complete and disruption to customers, along with the timing of forecast expenditure.
During the year, the combustible materials provision has been increased to reflect the most contemporaneous assessment of
these costs. If forecast remediation costs on buildings currently provided for are 20.0% higher than provided, the exceptional items
charge in the consolidated income statément would be £8.6m higher. If further buildings are identified this could also increase the
required provision, but the potential quantity of this change cannot be readily determined without further claims or investigative
work. See notes 4 and 19 for additional details. :

The accounting policies set out below have, unless otherwise stated, been applied consistently to all periods presented in these
Group financial statements except in respect of the impact on inventories of options purchased in respect of land as detailed within
the policies below. .

Adoption of new and revised standards
The following new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are apphcable to the Group and are mandatory for the
first time for the financial year beginning 1 Novemiber 2020:

Amendments to IFRS 3: Definition of a business

Amendments to |AS 1 and IAS 8: Definition of material

Ameéndments to IFRS 9, IAS 38 and IFRS 7: Interest rate benchmark reform
Amendment to IFRS 16: COVID-19 related rent concessions

The adoption of the amendments in the year.did not have a material impact on the financial statements.

Impact of standards and interpretations in issue but not yet effective

There are a number of standards, amendments and interpretations that have beéen published that are not mandatory for the 31
October 2021 reporting period and have not been adopted early by the Group. The Group does not expect that the adoption of
these standards, amendments and interpretations will have a material impact on the financial statements of the Group in future
years.
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CREST NICHOLSON PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Alternative performance measures

The Group has adopted various Alternative Performance Measures (APMs), as presented on pages 71-72. These measures are
not defined by IFRS and therefore may not be directly comparable with other companies' APMs, and should be considered in
addition to, and are not intended to be a substitute for, or'superior to, IFRS measurements.

Consolidation ,

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of Crest Nicholson plc, its subsidiary undertakings and the
Group's share of the results of joint ventures and joint operations. Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between Group companies are eliminated on consolidation.

(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entitiés in which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns through its power over the entity. In assessing control, potentlal voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convettible are taken into account. The profits and losses of subsidiaries areincluded in the consolidated financial statements from
the date that control commences:until the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used by the Group to-account for the acquisition of subsidiaries that are a business under
IFRS 3. On acquisition of a subsidiary, all of the subsidiary's separable, identifiable assets and liabilities existing at the date of
.acquisition are recorded at their fair values reflecting their condition at that date. All'changes to those assets and liabilities and the
resulting gains and losses that arise after the Group has gained control of the subsidiary aré charged to the post-acquisition
iconsolidated income statement or statement of comprehensive income. Accounting policies of acquired subsidiaries are changed
where necessary, to ensure consistency with policies adopted by the Group.

Acquisitions of subsidiaries which do not qualify.as_ a business under IFRS 3 are accounted for as an asset acquisition rather than a
business combination. Under such circumstances the fair value of the consideration paid for the subsidiary is dllocated to the assets
and liabilities purchased based on their relative fair value at the date of purchase. No goodwill is recognised on such transactions.

(b) Joint ventures ’

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement in whlch the Group and other parties undertake an economic actlwty that is subject to
joint control and these parties have rights to the net assets of the arrangement. The Group réports its interest in joint ventures using
the equity method of accounting. Under this method, interests in joint ventures are initially récognlsed at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the post-acquisition ptof its or losses and movements in other comprehensive income.
The Group's share of results of the joint venture after tax is included in a single line in the consolidated income statement. Where
the share of losses exceeds the Group’s interest in the entity and there is no obligation to fund these losses, the. carrying amount is
reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is discontinued, unless there is a lohg-term receivable due from the joint venture in
which case, if appropriate, the loss is recognised against the receivable. Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and
its joint ventures are eliminated on consolidation. Accounting policies of joint ventures have been changed where necessary, to
ensure consistency with policies adopted by the Group.

(c) Joint operations :

A joint operation is a joint arrangement that the Group undertakes with other parties, in.which those parties have rights to the assets
and obligations of the arrangement. The Group financial statements for joint operations by recognising its share of the jointly
controlled assets and liabilities and income and expendlture on a line-by-line basis in the consolidated statement of financial
position and consolidated income statement.

Revenue and profit recognition
Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of value added tax, rebates and discounts.

The Group does not recognise revenue on the proceeds received on the disposal of properties taken in part exchange against a
new property as they are incidental to the main revenue generating activities of the Group. Surpluses or deficits on the disposal of
part exchange properties, which are bought in at their forecast recoverable amount, are recognised directly within cost of sales and
are not material to the results of the Group. Proceeds received on the disposal of part exchange properties, which is not included in
revenue, are £48.6m (2020: £40.6m).

Revenue is recognised on house and apartment sales at legal completion. For affordable and other sales in bulk, révenue
recognition is dependent on freehold legal title being passed to the customer as it is considered that upon transfer of freehold title
that the customer controls the work-in-progress. Where freehold legal title and control is passed to the customer, revenue is
recognised on any upfront sale of land (where applicable) and then on the housing units as the build of the related units progresses,
using the input method based on costs incurred. Where freehold legal titleis not passed to the customer, revenue is not recognised
on any upfront sale of land and the revenue on the housing units and sale of land is recognised at handover of comiplétéd units to
the customer. The transaction price for all housing units is derived from contractual negotiations and does not include any material
variable consideration.

Revenue is predominantly recognised on land sales when legal title passes to the customer. If the Group has remaining
performance obligations such as the provision of services to the land an element of revenue is allocated to these performance
obligations and recognised as the obligations are performed, which can be when the works are finished if the work in progress is
controlied by the Group or over the performance of the works if they are controlled by the customer.
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CREST .NICHOLSON PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

" Revenue recognition on commercial property sales is dependent on freehold legal title being passed to the customer, as it is
considered that upon transfer of freehold title that the customer controls the work-in-progress. Where freehold legal title is passed to
the customer, revenue is recognised on any upfront sale of land (where appllcable) and then on the development revenue over time
as the build of the related commeércial units progress. Where freehold legal title is not passed to the customer revenue is not
recognised on any upfront sale of land and the revenue on the commercial property is recognised at handover of the completed.
commercial unit to the customer.

The transaction price for commercial property revenue may include an element of variable consideration based on the commercial
occupancy of the units when they are completed; though this is not expected to be material. If this is the case, the Directors take the
view that unless the lettings not yet contracted are highly probable they should not be included in the calculation of the transaction .
price. The transaction price is regularly updated to reflect any changes in the accounting period.

Revenué is recognised on freehold reversion sales when the customer is contractually entitled to the ground rent revenue stream
associated with the units purchased.

Revenue on specuﬁcalion upgrades paid for by the customer or on the cost of specification upgrades offered to the customer as part
of the purchase price is recognised as revenue when legal title passes to the customer.

Profit is recognised on a plot-by-plot basis, by reference to.the margin forecast across the related development site. Due to the
development cycle often exceeding one financial year, plot margins are forecast, taking into account the atlocation of site-wide
development costs such as infrastructure, and estimates required for the cost to complete such developments.

Government grants

Unconditional Government grants are reécognised against the line item to which they relate in the consolidated income statement.
Conditional Government grants received are presented in the consolldated statement of financial position as accruals and deferred
income. As'conditions are satisfied the Government grants are recogmsed against the line item to which they relate.

Exceptional items :

Exceptional items are those which, in the opinion of the Directors, are material by size and/or non-recurring in nature such as
significant costs associated with combustible materials, significant costs associated with acquiring another business and significant
inventory impairments. The Directors believe that these items require separate disclosure within the consolidated income staterhent
in order to assist the users of the financial statements in understanding what the Directors consider to be the underlying business
performance of the Group, which is how the Directors intérnally manage the business. Where appropriate, the material reversal of
any of thése amounts will also be reflected through exceptional items. Additional charges/credits to items classified as exceptional
items in prior years will be classified as exceptional inthe current year, unless immaterial to the financial statements. As these
exceptional items can vary significantly year-on-year; they may introduce volatility into the reported earnings.

Net finance expense

Interest income is recognised on a time apportioned basis by reference to the principal outstanding and the effective interest rate.
interest costs are recognised in the consolidated income statement on an accruals basis in the period in which they are incurred.
Income and deferred tax

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the consolidated income statement except to the
extent that it relates t6 items recognised in other comprehensive income, in which case it is recognised in other comprehensive
income, Current tax is the expected tax payable on taxable profit for the year and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years. Taxable profit is profit before tax per the consolidated income statement after adjusting for income and expenditure
that is not subject to tax, and for items that are subject to tax in other accounting periods. The Group's liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the consolidated statement of financial position date.
Current tax assets are recognised to the éxtent that it is probable the asset is recoverable.

Deferred tax is provided in full on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profits.

Deferred tax asséts are recognised to the éxtent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences. Deferred tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been substantively enacted by the consolidated statement of financial position date.
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CREST NICHOLSON PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Dividends
Final and.interim dividend distributions to the Company’s shareholders are recorded in the Group's financial statements in the
earlier of the period in which they are approved by the Company’s shareholders, or paid. '

Employee benefits ' .

(a) Pensions

The Group operates a defined benefit (DB) scheme (closed to new employees since October 2001 and to future service accrual since
April 2010) and also makes payments into a defined contribution scheme for employees.

In respect of the DB scheme, the retirement benefit deficit or surplus:is calculated by estimating the aniounit of futuré benéfit that
employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods, such benefits measured at discounted present
value, less the fair value of the scheme assets. The rate used to discount the benefité accrued is the yield at the consolidated
statement of financial position date on AA credit rated bonds that have maturity dates approximating to the terms of the Group's
obligations. The calculation is performed bya qualified actuary using the projected unit method. The operating and financing costs
of such plans are recognised separately in the consolidated income statement; past service costs and ﬁnancnng costs are
recognised in the periods in which they arise. The Group recognises expected scheme gains and losses via the consolidated
income stateément and actuarial gains and losses are recognised in the period they occur directly in other comprehensive income,
with associated deferred tax.

The retirement benefit deficit or surplus recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position represents the deficit.or
surplus of the fair value of the scheme's assets over.the present value of scheme liabilities, with any net surplus recognised to the
extent that the employer can gain economic benefit as set out in the requirements of IFRIC 14.

Payments to the defined contribution scheme are accounted for.on an accruals basis.

(b) Share-based payments
The fair value of equity-settled, share-based compensation plans is recognised as an employee expense with a corresponding
increase in equity. The fair value is measured as at the date the options are granted and the charge amended if vesting does not
take place due to pon-market conditions (such as service or performance) not being met. The fair value is spread over the period
during which the employees become unconditionally entitled to the shares and is adjusted to reflect the actual number of options
that vest. At the consolidated statement of financial position daté, if it is expected that non-market conditions will not be satisfied,

" the cumulative expense recognised in relation to the relevant options is reversed. The proceeds received are credited to share
capital (nominal value) and share premium when the options are exercised if new shares are issued. If reasury shares are used the
proceeds are credited to retained reserves. There are no cash-settled share-based compensation plans.

Software as a Service (SaaS) arrangements Implementation costs includihg costs to configure.or customise a cloud provider's
application software are recognised as administrative expenses when the services are received, and the Group determines that
there is no control over the asset in development.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost includes the original purchase price of the
asset and the costs attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition. Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of the
assets on a straight-line basis to their estimated residual value over its expected useful life at the following rates:

Fixtures and fittings 10%
Computer equipment and non:SaaS ‘software 20% to 33%

The asset residual values, carrying values and useful lives are reviewed on an annual basis and adjusted if appropriate at each
consolidated statement of financial position date.

Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
The Group assesses at lease inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a
lease liability at lease: commencement.

The right-of-use asset is initially recorded at the present value of future lease payments and subsequently measured net of
depreciation, which is charged to the consolidated income statement as an administrative expense over the shorter of its useful
economic life or its lease term on a straight-line basis. :

The Group recognises lease liabilities at the present value of future lease payments, lease payments being discounted at the rate
implicit in the lease or the Group's incremental borrowing rate as determined with reference to the most recently issued financial
liabilities carrying interest. The discount is subsequently unwound and recorded in the consolidated income statement over the
lease lerm as a finance expense. The lease term comprises the non-cancellable period of the contract, together with periods
covered by an option to extend the lease where the Group is reasonably certain to exercise that option.

The Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases that have a lease term of 12
months or less and leases of low value assets. The Group recognises the lease payments associated with these Ieases as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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CREST NICHOLSON PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contmued)
1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Inventories ,
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value (NRV).

Work-in-progress and completed buildings including show homes comprise land under development, undeveloped land, land option
payments, direct materials, sub-contract work, labour costs; site overheads, associated professional fees and other attributable
overheads, but excludes interest costs: .

Part @xchangé inventories are held at the lower of cost and net realisable value, which Includes an assessment of costs of
management and resale. Any profit or loss on the disposal of part exchange propérties is recognised within cost of sales in the
consolidated income statement.

Land inventories and the associated land payables are recognised in the statement of financiai position from the date of
unconditional exchange of contracts. Land payables are recognised as part of trade and other payables.

Options purchased in respect of fand are recognised initially as a prepayment within inventories and written down on a straight-line
basis over the life of the option. If planning permission is granted and the option exercised, the option is not written down during that
year and its carrying value is included within the cost of land purchased. The accounting policy for options purchased in respect of
land was changed during the year, see note 25 for further information.

Provisions are established to write down inventories where the estimated net sales proceéds less costs to complete exceed the
current carrying value. Adjustments to the provisions will be required where selling prices or costs to complete change. Net
realisable value for inventories is assessed by estimating selling prices and costs, taking into account current market conditions.

Financial assets.
Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently classified into one of the following measuremenit categories:

« measured at amortised cost
« measured subsequently at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
« measured subsequently at fair value through other.comprehensive income (FVOCI)

The classification of financial assets depends on the Group’s business mode!l for managing the asset and the contractual terms of
the cash flows. Assets that are held for the collection of contractual cash flows that represent solely payments.of principal and
interest are measured at amortised cost; with any interest income. recognised in the consolidated income statement using the
effective intefest rate. method.

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria to be measured at amortised cost are classified by the Group as measured
at FVTPL. Fair value gains and losses on financial assets measured at FVTPL are recognised in the consolidated income
statement and presented within administrative expenses. The Group curréently has no financial assets measured at FVOCH.

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss (which comprise shared equity receivables) are classified as being held to
collect and initially recognised at fair value. Changes in fair value relating to the expected recoverable amount are recognised in the
consolidated income statemént as a finance income or expense. These assets are held as current or non-current based on their
contractual repayment dates.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of trade and other receivables is established based on an
expected credit loss model applying the simplified approach, which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade and other
receivables. The amount of the loss is recognised separately in the consolidated income statemient. Current trade and other
receivables do not carry any inlerest and are stated at their amortised cost, as reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated
irrecoverable amounts. Non-current trade and other receivables are discounted to present value when the impact of discounting is
deemed to be material, with any discount to nominal value being recognised in the consolidated income statement as interest
income over the duration of the deferred payment.

Contract assets

Contract assets represent unbilled work-in-progress on affordable and other sales in bulk on contracts in which revenue is
recognised over time. Contract assets are récognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment. Contract assets do not carry any interest and are stated at their amortised
cost, as reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are cash balances in hand and in the bank and are carried in the consolidated statement of financial
position at nominal value.
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CREST NICHOLSON PLC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
1 'ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

Borrowings are recogmsed initially at fair value, net of direct transaction costs, and subsequently measured at amortiSed cost.
Finance charges are accounted for on an accruals basis in'the consolidated i lncome ‘statement using the effectrve interest method
and are addéd to the carrying amount of the instrument to the extent that they are not settled in the period in which they arise or
included within interest accruals.

Financial liabilities S o - -
Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently classified into one of the following measurement
catéegories:

« measured at amortised cost
. mea’g»yr'ed_éubse’qu’enﬁy at FVTPL

Non-derivative financial liabilities are measured at FVTPL when they are considered held for.trading of designated as siich on initial
recognition. The Group has no non- derivative financial liabilities measured at FVTPL.

Land payables .

Land payables are recogmsed in the consolidated statement of fi nancral position from the date of uncondmonal exchange of
contracts. Where land is purchased on deferred settlement terms then the land and the land payable are discounted to their fair
value using the effective interest method in accordance with IFRS 9. The difference betweén the faif valué and the nominat value'is
amortised over the deferment period, with the fi inancing element being charged as an interest expense through the consolidated
income statement.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their.fair vaiue and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Trade and other payables on deferred terms are initially recorded at their fair value, ‘with the discount to
nominal value being charged to the consolidated income slatement as an interest expense over the durahon of the deferred period.

Contract fiabilities

Contract Jiabilities represent payments on account, received from customiers, in excess of billable work-if-progress on affordable
and othersales in bulk on contracts. Contract liabilities are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at
-amortised cost using the effective interest method. .
Provisions ) _

A provision Is recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to setlle the obllgatron
-and the amount can be reliably estimated.

Seasonality
In common with the rest of the UK housebunldmg industry, activity accurs throughout the year, with peaks in sales completions in
spring and autumn. This creates seasonality in the Group's trading results and working capital:

2 'SEGME\NTAL ANALYSIS’

The Executive Leadership Team (comprising Peter Truscott (Chlef Executive), Tom Nicholson (Chief Operating Officer), Duncan
Cooper (Group Finance Director), David Marchant (Group Production Director), Kieran Daya (Managing Director, Crest Nicholson
Partnerships and Strategic Land), Jane Cookson (Group HR Director) and Kevin Maguire (General Counsel and Company
Secretary)), which is accountable to the Board, has been identified as the chlefbperalmg decision maker for the purposes of
determining the Group's operating segments. The Executive Leadership Team approves invesiment decisions, allocates group
resources and performs divisional performance reviews. The Group operallng segments are considered to be its divisions, each of
which has its own managemént board. All divisions are engaged in residential-led, mixed-use developments in the United Kingdom
-and therefore with consideration of relevant economic indicators such'as the natire of the products sold and customer base, and
having regard to'the aggregation criteria in IFRS 8, the Group identifies that it has one reportable operating segment.
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CREST NICHOLSON PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contlnued)

3 REVENUE

2021 2020
Revenue type £m £m
Open market housing inciuding specification upgrades . 654.7 581.8
Affordable housing 78.7 76.6
Total housing 7334 658.4
Land and commercial sales 49.2 17.8
Freehold reversions 4.0 1.7
Total 786.6 677.9

Land and commercial sales include revenue of £42.3m from the sales of tHe Longcross Film Studio to ourjomt
unincorporated arrangement partner on that scheme. Commercial sales are immaterial in each year.

2021 2020
Timing of revenue recognition £m £m
Revenue recognised at a.point in time } 695.3 551.2
Revenue recognised over time ) 91.3 126.7
“Total revenue 786.6 677.9

Proceeds received on the disposal of part exchange properties, which is not included in revenue, were £48.6m (2020:
£40.6m). These have been inciuded within cost of sales.

- ‘ ] 2021 2020
Assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers £m ‘£m
Contract assets (note 16) ’ 56.4 53.6
Contract liabilities (note 18) (25.0) (32.8)

Contract dssets have incréased to £56.4m from £53.6m in 2020, reflecting more unbilled work:in-progress on affordable and other
sales in bulk at the year end, This increase is not significant and is in line with the trading of the Group.

Contract liabilities have reduced to £25.0m from £32.8m in 2020, reflecting a lower amount of payments on account received from

customers in excess of billable work-in-progress on affordable and other sates in bulk on contracts on which revenue is recognised
over time. This fall was driven primarily by a reduction in a number of sites where revenue was recognised at a point in time in the

current year but the Group had received progress payments from the customer in the prior year,

Based on historical trends, the Directors expect a significant proportion of the contract liabilitie's total to be recognised as revenue in
the next reporting period.

Included in revenue during the year was £21.3m (2020: £18.1m) that was included in contract liabilities at the beginning of the year.

During the year £nil (2020; £nil) of revenue was recognised from pérformance obligations satisfied or partially satisfied in previous
years,

At 31 October 2021 there was £358.5m (2020: £260.8m) of transaction price\allocated to performance obligations that are
unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied on contracts exchanged with customers. We are forecasting to recognise £261.7m (2020:
£162.2m) of transaction prices allocated to performance obligations that are unsatisfied on contracts exchanged with customers:
within one year, £96.8m (2020: £98.6m) within two to five years, afd £nil (2020: £nil) over five years.
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CREST NICHOLSON PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4 EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS

“Exceptional items are those which, in the opinion of the Directors, are material by size and/or non-recurring in nature and therefore
require separate disclosure within the consolidated income statement in order to assist the users of the financial statements in
understanding what the Directors consider to be the underlying business performance of the Group. This is consistent with how the
Directors internally manage the business. Wheré appropriate, a material réversal of these amounts will be reflected through
exceptional items. Exceptional items for the year relate to the same category of items booked in previous financial years.

2021 '2020

. £m £m
Cost of sales )
Combustible materials charge : 31.2 2.6
Combustible materials credit . (2.4) (2.0)
Net combustibie materials charge ) 28.8 0.6
Inventory impairment . {8.0) Car7
Total cost of sales excéptional items 20.8 48.3
Administrative expenses - Restructuring-costs ) - 7.5
Net impairment losses on financial assets ’ - 7.6
Net finance expense .
Finance expense (0.5) 0.5
Total exceptional items ) 20.3 63.9
Tax credit on exceptional items (3.9) {12.1).
Total exceptional items after tax credit 16.4 51.8

Net combustible materials charge

In the year ended 31 Oclober 2019, following the latest Government guidance notes in respect of combustible materials, fire risk
and protection, and regulatory compliance on completed developments, the Group recorded an exceptional charge of £18.4m.

In the year ended 31 October 2020, the Group reassessed the adequacy of the provision held, resulting in a net combustible
materials charge of £0.6m, comprising a charge of £2.6m and a credit of £2.0m from settiement of claims against architects and
subcontraétors for incorrect buiilding design or workmanship, which is recognised when virtually certain. These costs were
previously included within the combustibie materials exceptional expense. As the recognition of the initial charge related to the
settlement received was an exceptional expense, the settlement is therefore recognised as an-exceptional income.

In the currént year, the Group reassessed the adequacy of the provision held to reflect a contemporaneous assessment of
expected remediation costs including additional claims received in the year. This has resulted in a net charge of £28.8m, comprising
a charge of £31.2m and a credit of £2.4m from settlements of claims against architects and subcontractors. Due to the material
nature of the charge, it has been recognised as an exceptional item. See note 19 for additional information.

Inventory impairment

Reflecling the anticipated deterioration to the housing sector and future economic uncertalnly caused by COVID-19, along with
uncertainty caused by Brexit and other market factors at the time, the Group recorded a £47.7m exceptional inventory impairment
charge in the year to 31 October 2020, comprising £33.9m net realisable value (NRV) charge on current operational developments
and £13.8m on abortive work-in-progress. The £33.9m NRV charge was based on a consensus of external market commentary
estimates from which the Directors derived key assumptions,

Sales price reductions of 7.5% and 32.0% for unexchanged residential and commercial units were applied to the entire inventory
portfolio respectively. In addition, site specific provisions were also applied to schemes where the Directors anticipated that further
price action would be needed in'a challenging market. These schemes share common characteristics of being complex, urban-
located and predominantly comprisé apartment accommodation. Three of these complex legacy developments compnsed the
majority of the write down.

In the year ended 31 October 2021, the Group has not experienced the residential sales price reductions previously anticipated..

. Since recording the NRV charge the Government has acted decisively to support the housing market, allowing it to remain open
:during COVID-19 restrictions, and extending the déadline for the initial stamp duty holiday to 30 September 2021. The propensny to
move home has also been boosted by expected changes to future remote working expectations. Accordingly. the Group has
considered whether it remains appropriate to hold the remaining, unutilised residential 7.5% sales price provision and has
concluded it should be released. Therefore, an exceptional inventory impairment credit of £8.0m has been recognised in the year.
The sales price provision of 32.0% for unexchanged commercial units has been maintained due to continued uncertaln(y in this
segment of the market,
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. CREST NICHOLSON PLC )
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
4 EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS (continued)

The remaining NRV provision of £20.9m (of which £16.6m was recorded as exceptional in 2020) held by the Group as presented in
note 19, mainly represents site specific provisions on two complex legacy developments which are unaffected by the removal of the
residential 7.5% sales price reductions, and have agreed fixed prices in place.

Administrative expenses and net impairment losses on financial assets

In the prior year the Group recorded restructuring costs of £7.5m within administrative expenses and net impairment losses on
financial assets of £7.6m as detailed in the Annual Integrated Report 2020. A further £1.0m net impairment loss on financial assets
was recorded in the current year and is not presented as an exceptional item due to materiality and nature.

Finance expense

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss comprise shared equity loans secured by way of a second charge on the
property. The prior year charge of £0.5m reflects the application of the 7.5% sales price reduction, and in line with the removal of
this assumption as noted above, this results in a reduced exceptional finance expense of £0.5m in the current year,

Taxation
An income tax credit of £3.9m (2020: £12.1m) has been recognised in relation to the above exceptional items.

5 OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS)

Operating profit of £89.4m (2020: loss of £7.2m) from continuing activities is stated after

charging/(crediting):
Note 2021 2020
£m £m
Inventories expensed in the year 17 786.6 535.7
Inventories impairment movement in the year 17 (19.7) 30.4
Staff costs 6 53.4 60.3
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 10 1.0 44
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 1" 24 2.7
Joint venture project management fees received 24 (1.5) (1.4)
Government grants repaid/(received) 25 (2.5)

Government grants repaid/(received)

During the year ended 31 October 2020 the Group recognised £2.5m credit within administrative expenses relating to the
Government’'s Job Retention Scheme (JRS). On the 14 December 2020, the Group voluntarily repaid the JRS grant, representing a
charge within administrative expenses in the current year.

2021 2020

Auditors’ remuneration: £000 £000
Audit of the financial statements of subsidiaries of Crest Nicholson plc 640 754
Audit of parent company and these consolidated financial statements 25 18

The audit fees payable in 2021 includes £70,000 in relation to additional costs for the 2020 audit (2020: fees payable
includes £335,000 in relation to additional costs for the 2019 audit).

Fees payable to the Group's auditors for non-audit services included £80,000 (2020: £153,000) in respect of an
independent review of the half year results.

In addition to the above, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP provide audit services to the Crest Nicholson Group Pension and Life
Assurance Scheme and Group joint ventures. The fees associated with the services to the Crest Nicholson Group Pension and Life
Assurance Scheme are £24,000 (2020: £22,000) and are met by the assets of the scheme, and the fees associated with services to
Group joint ventures are £28,000 (2020: £25,000).

6 STAFF NUMBERS AND COSTS

2021 2020
(a) Average monthly number of persons employed by the Group Number Number
Development 661 796

The Directors consider all employees of the Group to be employed within the same category of Development.
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CREST NICHOLSONPLC ) ‘
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FI'NA‘NCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
6 STAFF NUMBERS AND COSTS (contiriued)

2021 2020

(b) Staff costs (includiiig Diréctors and Key Marniagement) £m £m

‘Wages and salaries . 43.8 50.6

Social security costs 5.4 6.3
Other pension costs 24 29
Share-based payments (note 15) 1.8 0.5.

5§34 60.3

2021 2020

{c} Key Management remuneration ‘ £m £m

Salaries and short-term employee benefits 4.3 29

‘Share-based payments 0.9 0.3
5:2 3.2

Key Management coniprises the. Executive. Management Team (which includes the Executive Directors of the Board) are
considered to have the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group.

2021 2020

(d) Directors' remuneration . £m £m
Salarigs and shortterm employee benefits 29 2.2
Share-based payments . 0.8 0.3
3.7 2.5

The aggregate of emolurnents and amounts receivable under long term incentive schemes of the highest paid Director

was £1.5m (2020: £1.1m).

‘Number of Directors

2021 2020
Retirement benefits are ‘accruing to the-following number of Directors ufider:
Defined contribution schemes - -
Defined benefit schemes - 1
The:number of Directors whio éxercised share.optioris was - 2
The number of Directors in respect of whose QUaIifying services shares were received 4 4
‘or receivable under long term incentive schemes was
.7 FINANCE INCOME AND EXPENSE
2021 2020
Finance income fm £m
Interest income 0.2 0.6
Interest payable to Group undertakings 58 -
Interést on amounts due from associates {note 24) 2.8 2.7
Interest on financial.assets at fair value through piofit and loss (note 13) 0.4 -
. 9.2 3.3
Finance expense
Interest expense (0.4) -
Interest payable to Group undertakings ’ - (4.6)
Imputed interest on deferred land creditors (2.8) (3.0)
Interest on lease liabilities (note 11} (0.2) (0.2)
Interest on financial assets at fair value through profit and loss (note 13) 0.5 {0.5)
Net interest on defined benefit pension plan obligations (note 15) (0.9) {0.5)
(3.8) (8.8)
Net finance income/(expense) ’ 54 (5.5)
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CREST.NICHOLSON PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

8 INCOME TAX (EXPENSE)/CREDIT

2021 2020
tm £m

Current tax
\UK Corporation tax (expense)/credit on profits/(ioss) for the year (11.4) . as
Adjustments in respect of prior years , ) "{0.2) {0.1)
Total curfent tax (expense)lcredn (11.6) ) 34
Deferred tax .
Originalion and reversal of temporary differences in the current year (2.8) (0.6)
Total deferred tax expense (note 14) . {2.8) i (0.6)
Total income tax (expense)/credit in consolidated income statement (14.4) L 2.8

The effective tax rate for the year, lS 14.9% (2020: 21:2%) which is lower (2020: higher than) than the standard rate of UK
corporation tax of 19.00% (2020: 19.0%) due to the impact of the changes in.UK tax rates on deferred tax. The effective tax rate
benefits from the effect of enhanced tax deductions in éxcess of other items which are not deductible for tax purposes, and
group relief. The Group expects this profile to continue’in'future years, adjusted for the impact of effect of change in rate of tax.

The differences are explained below: -

. ) 2021 2020
Reconciliation of tax (expense)/credit in the year £m ‘£m
Profit/(loss) before taxatlon 96.5 (13.2)
Tax on proﬁt/(loss) at 19, 0% (2020: 19.0%) . (18.3), 25
Effects of:

Expenses not deductibié for tax purposes {0.7) {0.5)
Enhanced tax deductions 0.2 0.2
Group refief 4.2 0.6
Adjustments in respect of prior years (0.2) (0.1)
Effect of change in rate of tax 0.4 ) 0.1
Total income tax (expense)/credit in consolidated income statement (14.4). . 2.8

§
Expenses not.deductible for tax purposes include business entertaining and other permanent: disallowable expenses. Enhanced
tax deductions include |tems for which, under tax law, a corporation tax deduction is available in excess of the amount shown in
the consolidated income statement. Examples are share schemes, defined benefit pension payments and land remediation
enhanced allowances. Adjustments in respect of prior periods reflect the differenceé between the estimated consolidated income’
statement tax charge in the prior year and that of the actuat tax outcome. Effect of change in rate of tax reflects the adjustment in
respect of the change in future tax rate from 19.0% to 25.0% with effect from .1 April 2023 on deferred tax balances, as changed -
by the 2021 Budget. As a result, the'deferred tax balances on the consolidated statement of financial position have been  ~
measured using these revised rates. The Residential Property Developer Tax (RPDT) tax rate of 4.0% has been confirmed
which will be éffective from 1. April 2022, and be applicable to the Groli. As this change was not ‘substantively enacted by the
-consolidated statement of financial position date, the impact is not reﬂected in these financial statements.

9 DIVIDENDS

There were no dlstnbuuons to equity shareholders in the year (2020 mI) No dividend has been proposed by the Directors after the
statement of financial position date (2020: nil).

Registered no. 1040616
‘Elassified as general



CREST NICHOLSON PLC .
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Computer
Fixtures and equipment
fittings: and software Total
£m £m £m

Cost
At 1 November 2019 : 2.2 3.1 15.3
Additions - 0.3 0.3
Disposals ) -~ (0.2) _ (1.4) (1:6)
At 31 October 2020. 2.0 12.0 14.0
Additions ‘ - 0.2 0.2
Disposals (0.2) (9.0) ) {9.2)
At 31 Octeber 2021 ] 1.8 3.2 6.0
Accumulated depreciation .
At 1 November 2019 : 1.0 . 8.2 9.2
Charge for the year . 0.2 4.2 4.4
Disposals . . {0.2) (1.4) (1.6)
At 31 October 2020 1.0 11.0 12.0
‘Charge for the year 0.2 0.8 1.0
Disposal$ ’ ] (0.2) (9.0 (9.2):
At 31 October 2021 ' - 1,0 2.8 o 3.8
Net book valué .
Al 31 October 2021 . 0.8 0.4 1.2
Al 31 Oclober 2020 \ o i 1.0 1.0 2.0
At 1 November 2019 1.2 4.9 64

In line with IAS 16, a réview-of the fixed asset register-was carried out during.the year resulling in removal of computer assets
that were no longer used by the business with a cost of £9.0m and net book.value of £nil.

“In the prior year the Group reassessed the IT ihffastruéturg"s useful life in the business, resulting in.an accelerated depreciation
charge in that:year of £2.:5m within computer equipment and software.

The Group has contractual’commitments forithe acquisition of property, plant and equipment of £riil (2020: £nil).
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CREST NICHOLSON PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

11 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES

Right-of-use assets included in the consolidated statement of financial position

Office ‘Motor
buildings vehicles P-hotocopieljs Total .
£m . £m £m £m
Cost ‘
At 1 November 2020 } 13.3 6.7 0.6 20.6
Additions : 0.1 - 01
Disposals {0.2) (2:6) (0.6) (3.4)
Al 31 October 2021 131 4.2 - 17.3
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 November 2020 9.5 ’ 4.6 0.5 14.6
Charge for the year 1.4 0.9 0.1 24
Released on disposal (0.2) (2.6) (0.6) (3.4)
At 31 Oclober 2021 . . 107 2.9 - 13.6
Net book value.
At 31 October 2021 ) 24 1.3 - 3.7
At 1. November 2020 38 2 0.1 6.0
Lease liabilities included in the consolidated statement of financial position )
: 2021 2020
£m £m
Non-current 2.7 4.7
Currént 1.9 2.3
Total lease liabilities. 4.6 7.0
Amounts recognised in the consolidated income statement
’ - 2021 2020
) £m £m
Depreciation on right-of-use assets 24 2.7
Interest on lease liabilities 0.2 0.2
. Amounts recognised in the consolidated cash flow statement.
’ 2021 2020
) £m £m
Principal elements of lease payments 2.7 2.9
Maturity of undiscounted contracted lease cash flows
2021 2020
£m £m
Less than one year 21 24
‘One to five years 2.9 46
More than five years - 0.3
Total 5.0 7.3
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CREST NICHOLSON PLC:
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continusd)

12 INVESTMENTS -
Investments in joint véntiires

Below are the joint ventures that the Directors consider to-be material to the Group:

aan ved

2027 'The LLP, wrll be equally funded by ‘both partles Who will recéive interest on Ioaned sums The Group performs the role

. of project manager. for which it receives a project management fee.

s Bonner Road LLP: In'August 2015 thie Group entered into a partnership agreement with’ Your Lifespace Limited to procure
and develop a site in London. Planning permlssmn for this development_rs bemg sought; but has not yet been obtained. The
LLP is forecast to start constructroﬁ‘in 2023, with sales completron forecast for 2030. The LLP will be equally funded by both
parties, who will receive interest'on loaned sums. The Group performs the role of prolect manager, for which it receives a.
project management fee:

e Crest A2D (Waiton-Court) LLP: In January 2016 the Group entefed into a partnershnp agreement with A2 Dominion,
Developments Limited to procure and develop asitein Surrey The LLP commenced construction in 2019 with sales
completion forecast for 2026. The development will be equally funded by both parties by way of interest free loans. The
Group performs the role of project manager, for which it receives a’project management fee.

o Elmsbrook (Crest A2D) LLP: In July 2017 the Group enitered intoa; partnershrp agreement with A2' Dommron Developments.
Limited to procure and develop. asite in Oxfordshire, The LLP commenced construction in 2018, with sales completion
forecast for 2023. The dévelopment will be equally funded by both parties by way of interest free loans. The Group performs
the role of prOJect manager, for which it receives a pro;ect management fee.

v 2024 - 2020
Total investments in joint ventures , : £m £m
Crest Sovereign (Brooklands) LLP - -
Bonner.Road LLP . . -
Crest A2D (Walton Court) LLP . 2.2 1.0,
Elmsbrook (Crest A2DyLLP® 45 2.6
Other.non-material joint véntures_ 04 . .01
Total investmerits in ]oint ventures ‘ 68 3.7

All joint ventures have their place of business in Great Britain, are 50% owned and are accounted for uslng the equrty method, in
line with the pnor year. See note 27 for further details.
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CREST NICHOLSON PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
12 INVESTMENTS (continued)

Summarised financial information for joint ventures

The tables below provide financial information for joint ventures that are material 1o the Group. The information dlsclosed reflects
the amounts presentediin the finantcial statements of the relevant joint ventures and not Crest Nicholson Holdings pic's share of
those amounts.

2021 Sove ?;iegsr: Bonner CrestA2D  Elmsbrook  Other non-
(Waiton Court) (Crest A2D) material joint Total
(Brooklands) Road LLP LLP LLP ventures
LLP i

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Summarised statement of
financial position

Current assets
Cashand cash equivalents 0.8 0.1 . 6.6 0.2 7.7
lnventories 42.8 59.9 45.8 T2 - 155.7
Other current assets 48 - 0.6 0.6 0.2 6.2
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities (22.4) - (7.8) (2.2) - (32.4)
Other current liabilities (6.2) (0.2) 3.7 (3.3) (0.2) (13.6)
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities (20.8) (73.5) (30.6) . - (124.9)
Net (liabilities)/assets (1.0) (13.7) 4.3 8.9 0.2 (1.3)
Reconciliation to carrying
amounts.
Opening net (liabilities)/assets at 1
November 2020 (2.4) (11.5) 2.0 5.2 0.2 (6.5)
Profit/{loss) for the year 1.4 (2.2) 0.7 3.7 - 3.6
Capital contribution reserve - - 1.6 - Lt ) 1.6
Ciosing net (liabilities)/assets at 31
October 2021 (1.0) (13.7) 4.3 8.9 0.2 (1.3)

Group's share in closing net

(liabilities)/assets at 31 October

2021 (0.5) (6.9) 2.2 4.5 : 0.1 (0.6)
Losses recognised agaijnst

receivable from joint venture (note

16) ) 0.5 6.9 - - - 7.4
Group's share in joint venture - ) - - 2.2 4.5 0.1 6.8
Amount due to the Group (note 16) 212 18.2* 15.5* 1.4 - §6.0
Amount due from the Group (note -

18) - - - - 0.1 0.1
Summarised income statement :

Revenue 220 - 15.5 16.6 - 54.1
Expenditure (18.4) - (13.7) (12.9) - (45.0)
Operating profit before fmance

expense 3.6 - 18 3.7 - 9.1
Finance éxpense . (2.2) . (2.2) {1.1) - - (5.5)
Pre-tax .and post-tax profit/(loss) for ' )

the year 14 {2.2) 0.7 37 - 3.6

Group's share in joint venture v
profit/(loss) for the year 0.7 {1.1) 0.3 1.8 . - 1.7

*£18.2m stated after expected credit loss of £11.8m, and £15.5m stated after expected credit loss of £0.1m.

The Group is committed to provide such funding to joint ventures as may be required by the joint venture in order to earry out the
project if called. No funding of this nature is currently expected to be required. The Group has recognised its share of the
accumulated losses of its joint ventures against the carrying value of investments or loans in the Jomt venture where appropriate,
in line with IAS 28. :
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CREST NICHOLSON PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
12 INVESTMENTS {continued)

2020 Crgst Crest A2D Elmsbrook  Other non-
Sovereign Bonner . P
(Brooklands) Road LLP (Walton (Crest A2D) material joint Total
LLP Court) LLP LLP ventures
£m £m £m £m £m £fm
Summarised statement of
financial position

Current assets '
Cash and cash equivalents 3.0 01 .07 4.2 0.2 8.2
Inventories 39.2 59.0 398 8.0 - 146.0
Other current assets 2.9 - 0.3 1.6 0.2 5.0
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities (7.8) - (14.8) (4.4) - (27.0)
Other current liabilities (2.3) - (3.6) (4.2) (0.2) (10.5)
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities (37.4) {70.6) (20.4) - - (128.4)
Net (liabilities)/assets (2.4) {11:5) 2.0 5.2 0.2 (6.5)
Reconciliation to carrying
amounts’
Opening net (liabilities)/assets at 1
November 2018 {1.0) (9:1) 1.6 21 0.2 (6.2)
(Loss)/profit for the year (1.4) (2.4) (0.2) 31 - (0.9)
Capital contribution réserve - - 0.6 - < 0.6
Closing net(liabilities)/assets at 31 S ’
October 2020 (2.4) (11.5) 2.0 5.2 0.2 {6.5)

Group's share in closing net

(Hiabifities)/assets at 31 October

2020 (1.2) (5.8) 1.0 2.6 0.1 (3.3)
Losses recognised against

receivable from joint venture (rote

16) 12 58 - - - 7.0
Group's share in joint venture - - ‘1.0 2.6 0.1 3.7
Amount due to Crest Nicholson ) .

Group(note 16) ’ 214 18.8* -12.0* . 23 - 54.5
Amount due from Crest Nicholson

Group {note 18) - - - - 0.1 0.1
Summarised income statement

Revenue, 7.3 - 7.7 15.4 - 30.4
Expenditure (6.7) - (6.9) (12.3) . (25.9)
Operating profit before financing )

expense 0.6 - 0.8 31 - 4.5
Finance expense (2.0) (2.4) {1.0) - - (5.4)
Pre-tax and post-tax (loss)/profit for ~

the year (1.4) (2.4) (0.2) 31 - (0.9)

‘Group's share in joint venture
(loss)/profit for the year (0.7) 1.2) (0.1) 1.5 - (0.5)

* £18.8m stated after expected credit loss of £10.8m, and, £12.0m stated after expected credit loss of £0.1m. ’
Group commitments to joint ventures at 31 October 2021 and 31 October 2020 is equal to the amounts due to the Crest Nicholson
Group. The Group is committed to provide such funding to joint ventures as may be required by the joint venture in order to carry
out the project if called.

Subsidiary undertakings
Crest Nicholson Operations Limited is the only subsidiary undertaking that is significant to the Group and traded during the year.

The Group's interest is in respect of ordinary issued share capital that is wholly owned, incorporated in Great Britain'and included in
the consolidated financial statements. A full list of the Group’s undertakings including subsidiaries and joint ventures is set out'in
note 27.
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CREST NICHOLSON PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

13 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT.FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT.AND LOSS

2021 2020

£m £m

At beginning of the year 5.4 7.2

Disposals : (1.0y . 11.3)

Imputed interest 0.9 _...(0.5)

At end of the year . : 5.3 5.4
Of which:

Non-current assets 4.2 4.6

Current assets 1.1 0.8

5.3 i 5.4

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) are carried at fair value and categorised as level 3 (inputs not
based on observable market data) within the hieraichical classification of IFRS 13 Revised.

FVTPL comprise shared equity loans secured by way of a'second charge on the property. The loans can be repaid at any time
within the loan agreement the amount of which is dependent on the market value of the asset at the date of repayment. The
assets are recorded at fair value, being the estimated amount receivable by the Group, discounted to present day values.

The fair value of future anticipated cash receipts takes into account Directors’ views of an appropriate discount rate
(mcorporanng purchaser.default rate), future house price movements and the éxpected timing of receipts. These assumptions
are given below and are reviewed at each yéar end.

Assumptions 2021 2020
Discount rate, incorporating default rate 10.5% . 10.5%
House pfice.inflation for the next.thiee years 3.0% 0.0%
Timing of receipt 8to 17 years 8 to 16 years
2021 2021 .

Increase Decrease
assumptions assumptions
by 1 %l/year by 1 %lyear
£m £m

Sensitivity - effect on value of FVTPL (less)/more . .
Discount rate, incorporating default rate . . (0.1) 041
House price inflation for the next three years 0.1 (0.1)
Timing of receipt : (0.2) 0.2

In the prior year the Directors reassessed the key assumptions due to the market impact of COVID-19 and as a resuilt removed
all future house price growth and reduced the anticipated net'receipt by 7.5%. This reduced the fair value of the remaining
porifolio by £0.5m in the prior year. As disclosed in note 4, the 7.5% reduction in sales prices assumption has been removed in
the current year and resulted in an increase in the fair value of the remaining portfolio by £0.5m, which is included within the
£0.9m imputed interest in the table above. House price inflation is now modelled at being 3% for the next 3 years.

The différence between the anticipated future receipt and thé initial fair valiie is charged over the estimated deferred term to
financing, with the financial asset increasing to its full expected cash settlement value on the anlicipated receipt date. The
imputed finance income credited to financing for the year ended 31 October 2021 was £0.9m (2020: finance charge £0,5m).

At initial recognition, the fair values of the assets are calculated using a discount rate, appropriate to the class of assets, which
reflects market conditions at the date of entering into the transaction. The Directors consider at the end of each reporting period
whether the initial market discount rate still reflects up-to-date market conditions. if a revision is required, the fair values of the
assets are remeasured at the present value of the revised future cash flows using this revised discount rate. The difference
between these values and the carrying values of the assets is recorded against the carrying value of the assets and recognised
directly in the consolidated income statement.
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CREST NICHOLSON PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) |

14 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS AND DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

‘Short-term
_ Share-based Pension temporary

Deferred tax assets payrment .deficit differences Total

£m £m £€m £m

At 1 November 2019 - originally reported 0.2° 1.1 1.6 2.9

Change in accounting policy' : - - . 1.4 1.4

At 1 November 2019 - restated ' 0.2 11 3.0 4.3

Consolidated income statement movements (0.1) (1.2) 0.7 (0.6)

Equity movements - 27 - 2.7

At 31 October. 2020 } 0.1 2.6 3.7 6.4

At 1 November 2020 — originally reported 0.1 26 23 5.0

Change'in accounting policy' . . - 1.4 1.4
At 1 November 2020 - restated 0.1 26 .37 6.4

Consolidated income statement movements 0.2 (1:9) (1.1) (2.8)

Equity movements 0.1 (0.7) - (0.6)

At 31 October 2021 0.4 - 2.6 3.0

! Reslale& to reflect the change in accounting policy on land optians. See note 25.
) Pension )

‘Deferred tax liabilities surplus Total

. £m - £m

At 31 October 2019 and 31 October 2020 A

Equity movements (4.1) (4.1)

At 31 October 2021 . (44) ___(4.1)

Total deferred tax charged to equiiy in the year is £4.7m (2020: credited to equity £2.7m).

Deferred tax assets expected to be recoveied in less than 12 months is £0.5m'(2020: £2.6m), and more than 12 months is.
£2.6m (2020: £2.8m). Deferred tax liabilities ‘are expected to be settled in more 12 months.

At the consolidated statement of financial position date the substantively enacted future corporation tax rate up to 31 March
2023 is 19.0% and from 1 April 2023 is 25.0%. Deferred tax assets and liabilities have beén evaluated using the applicable tax
rates when the asset is forecast to be realised and thie liability is forecast to be settled. The Group has no material unrecognised
deferred tax assets.

The Residential Property Developer Tax (RPDT) tax rate of 4.0% has been confirmed which will be effective from 1 April 2022
and be applicable to the Group. As this change was not substantively enacted by the consolidated statement of financial position
date, the impact, which would not be material is not reflected in the deferred tax balances.

15 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

(a) Retirement benefit obligations

Defined contribution scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution scheme for new employees. The assets of the scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered fund. The contributions to this scheme for the year ware £2.0m (2020:
£2.7m). At the consolidated statement of financial position date there were no outstanding or prepaid contributions (2020: £nil).

Defined benefit scheme

The Company sponsors the Crest Nicholson Group Pension arid Life Assurance Scheme (the Scheme), a funded defined
benefit pension scheme in the UK. The Schenie is administered within a trust that is legally separate from the Company.
Trustees are appointed by both the Company and the Scheme s members and act in the interest of the Scheme and all relevant
stakeholders, including the members and the Company The Trustees are also responsuble for the investment of the Scheme's
assels.
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CREST NICHOLSON PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
15 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)

The Scheme closed to future accrual from 30 April 2010. Accrued pénsions in relation to deferred members are revalued at
statutory revaluation in the period before rétirement. Benefits also increase either at a fixed rate-or in line with infiation while in
payment, The Scheme provides pensions to members on retirement and to their dependants on death.

The Company pays contributions to improve the Scheme's funding position as-determined by regular actuarial valuations. The
Trustees are required to use prudent assumptions to value the liabilities and costs of the Scheme whereas the accounting
assumptions must be best estimates.

Respon5|b|||ty for meeting any deficit within the Scheme lies with the Company and this introduces a number of risks for the
Company. The major risks are: interest rate risk, inflation risk, investment risk and longevity risk. The Compariy and Trusteés are
aware of these fisks and manage them through appropriate investment-and funding strategies.

The Scheme is subject to regular actuarial valuations, which are usually carried out every three years. The last actuarial
valuation was carried out with an effective date of 31 January 2018 and the actuarial valuation as at 31 January 2021 is curréntly
being finalised. These actuarial valuations are carried out in accordance with the requirements of the Pensions Act 2004 and so
includes deliberate margins for prudence. This contrasts with these accounnng disclosures, which are determined using beést
estimate assumptions.

The preliminary results of the actuanal valuation as at 31 January 2021 have been projected to 31 October 2021 by a qualified
independent actuary. The figures in the following disclosure were measured using the Projected Unit Méthad.

The investment strategy in place for.the Scheme is to invest in a mix of return seeking, index linked and fixed interest
invéstments. At 31 October 2021, the allocation of the Scheme's invested assets was 44% in return seeking investments, 17% in
corporate bonds, 37% in liability-driven investing and 2% in cash, Details of the investment strategy can be found in the
Scheme's Statement of Investment Principles, which the Trustees update as their policy evolves.

it should also be noted that liabilities relating to insured members of the Scheme have been.included as both an asset and a
liability.

Following the High Court judgement in the Lioyds case, overall pension benefits now need to be equalised to éliminate-
inequalities between males and females in Guaranteed Minimum Pensions (GMP). The Company has always allowed for this in
its financial statements by adding a 2% reserve reflecting an approximate estimate of thé additional liability. Although this does
‘not explicilly allow for the judgement in the prior year on allowmg for GMP equalisation for past transfer values as it is too early
to quantify, it is likely that the current allowance would be sufficient to cover this as well. The real cost will be known once the
relevant calculations have been carried out, which is expected to be dunng 2022.-Once the true cost is known, any dlfference
from the estimated 2% is expected to flow through total comprehensive income:

2021 2020 2019
£m £m £m
The amounts recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position are as follows:
Present value of scheme liabilities (225.2) {228.3) (216.5)
Fair value of scheme assels 241.9 214.5 210.3
Net surplus/(deficit) amount recognised at year end 16.7 {13.8) {6.2)
Deferred tax asset recognised at year end within non-current assets - © 26 1.1
Deferred tax liability recognised at year end within non-current liabilities (4.1) - -

The retirement benefit surplus/(deficit) recognised in the consolidated statemeént of financial position represents the surplus/(deficit)
of the fair value of the Scheme's assets over the present value of Scheme liabilities. There has been a material improvement in the
position going from a deficit of £13.8m at 31 October 2020 to a surplus of £16.7m at 31 -October 2021. This was mainly driven by
improved asset returns, the contributions paid by the Company to improve the Scheme's funding position and changes in financial
assumptions which have reduced the value placed on the liabilities.

The rules of the.Scheme provide the Group with an unconditional right to a refund of surplus assets on the gradual settlement of

the Scheme's liabilities. In the ordinary course of business the Scheme trustées have no unilateral right to wind the Schemie up.

Based on these rights and in accordance with IFRIC 14, the Group has made the judgement that the net surplus in the Scheme
. is recognised in full.

At the consolidated statement of financial position date the substantively enacted future corporation tax rate up to 31 March
2023 is 19.0% and from 1 April 2023 is 25.0%. The deferred tax liability on the retirement benefit surplus has been evaluated
applying a 25.0% tax rate.
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CREST NICHOLSON PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL.STATEMENTS (contihued)
15 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)

Amourits recogrised in compréhensive income:
“The currenfand past service: costs, settiements and cuda:lments together with the net interest expense for the year are included

in‘the consohdated statement of comprehensive income..Rémeasuremients of the. net-defined benéfit asset/(llablhky) afe included
in the consolidated staternent:of ‘comprehensive income.

2021 2020
£m ’ £m
‘Service cost )
Administrative expenses (0.8) (0.4)
Netinterest expense {0.1) (0.1)
Expense recognised in the consolidated income staterient (0.9) (0.5)
2021 2020
£m £m
Rémeéasuréments of the.net llability )
‘Return on ‘Scheme assets 195 1.3,
Loss arising frof chianges i in financial assumptlons (2.8) (13.8)
Loss arising from changes in demographic assumptlons {0.5) (3.7)
Experiérice gain ' o 4.0 ) 24
Actuarial ‘gain/(loss) recorded in the iconsdlidated staléiment of comprehensive 202 (13.8)
income -
Total defined benefit scheme gain/(loss) ' 193 (14:3)
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CREST NICHOLSON PLC

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)

15 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)

" The principal actuarial assumptions used were:

Liability discount rate

Infiation assumption - RPI

Infiation assumption - CPI

Revaluation of deferred pensions

Increases for pensions in payment

Benefits accrued in respect:of GMP

‘Benefits acciued in excess of GMP pre-1997
Benefits accrued post-1997

Proport:on of employees opting. for early retirement
Proportion of employees commuting pension for cash
Mortality assumption. - pre-retirement

Mortality assumption - male post-retirement

Mortality assumptjon - female post-retirement:

_ Future expected fifetimé of current pensioner at age 65
Male aged 65 at year end
Fémalé aged 65 at year end
Future expected lifetime of future pensmner at age .65
Male aged 45 at year.end
Female aged 45 at year end

Changes in the present value of asséts over the year

Fair value of assets at beginning of the year

Interest income

Return on assets (excluding amount included in net interest expense)
Contributions from the employer

Benefits paid

Administrative expenses

Fair value of assets at end of the year

Aclual return on assets over the year

Changes in the present value of liabilities over the year

Liabilities at beginning of the year s
Interest cost
Remeasurement (losses)/gains
Loss arfsing from changes in financial assumptions
Loss arising from changes in demographic assumptions
Experience gain
Benefits paid
* Liabilities at end of the year
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2021
%

1.70

3.50
2.80
2.80

3.00°
3.00

3.30

-0.00

100.00

ACO00

SAPS S3 PMA
_LCMI_2020 core
model with initial

addition.of 0.3%
and 2020 weighting

of 0.0% Itr 1.25%
SAPS S3 PFA

_LCMI_2020 core

mode! with initial

2020

%

1.50
3.05
2.25
2.25

3.00
3.00
2.95
0.00

100.00

AC00

SAPS S2 PMA

_LCMI_2019 with
initial addition of

0.5% p.a. itr
1.25%

SAPS S2 PFA_L
CMI_2019 with

initial addition of'

addition of 0.3% 0.5% p.a. itr

and 2020 weighting 1.25%
of 0.0% Itr 1.25%

2021 2020

Years Years

23.4 23.3

24.9 24.4

24.6 24.6

26.3 25.9

2021 2020

£m £m

214.5 210.3

3.3 4.1

19.5 1.3

11.2 6.7

(5.8) (7.5)

(0.8) {0.4)

241.9° 214.5

22.8 33

2021 2020

£m £m

(228.3) (216.5).

(3.4) (4.2)

(2.8) (13.8)

{0.5) (3.7)

4.0 24

5.8 7.5

(225.2) {228.3)
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CREST NICHOLSON PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
15 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)

2021 2020
Split of the Scheme's liabilities by category of membership £m £m
Deferred pensioners ) ©(118.7) (135.4)
Pensions in payment {109.5) (92.9)
(225.2) (228.3)
2021 2020
Years Years
Average duration of the Schemie's liabilities at end of the year 17.0 17.0
This can be subdivided as follows:
Deferred pensioners 21.0 21.0
Pensions in payment : 12.0 12.0
Major categories of scheme assets
2021 2020
£m £m
Return seeking
Overseas equities : 19.6 145
Absolute réturn funds : 58.8 54.1
Muiti-strategy funds . 15.0 26.7
Other (secured income, structured product) * 9.9 19.8
’ 103:3 115.1
Debt instruments '
Corporates : 41.2 38.8
Index linked * . - : 48.2
Liability-driven investing 86.1 -
127.3 87.0
Other .
Cash 4.9 5.1
Insured annuities ) 6.4 7.3
11.3 12.4
Total market value of assets 2419 2145

£17.8m (2020: £111.5m) of Scheme assets have a quoted market: price in active markets, £137.4m (2020: £63.2m) of Scheme
assets have valuation inputs other than quoted market prices, including quoted market prices for similar assets in active
markets, £75.4m (2020: £27.4m) of Scheme assets are instruments that are valuéd based on quoted prices for similar
instruments but for which significant unobservable ad;uslments or assumptlons are required to reﬂect the differences between
the instruments, and £11.3m (2020: £12. 4m) of Scheme: assets are cash and insured pension annuities.

The Scheme has no investments in the Group or in property occupied by the Group.

The Group's statutory funding obligation was met as at 31 January 2018 with the Scheme achieving a 101% fundlng level'on a
techinical provisions basis. The Company will fund the Scheme with contributions of £0.75m per month (payable in arrears), until
the earlier of 30 June 2022 or the Scheme meeting its funding objective on a self-sufficiency basis, with a further £0.25m being
due with the 30 June 2022 payment. The Group expecls to contribute £7.0m to scheme funding in thé year ending 31 October
2022.

Sensitivity of the liability value to changes in the principal assumptions

If the discount rate was 0.25% higher/{lower), the Scheme liabilities would decrease by £9.1m {increase by £9.7m) if all the other
assumptions remained unchanged.

If the inflation assumption was 0.25% higher/(lower), the Scheme Ilabllmes would increase by £5.5m (decrease by £5.2m) if all
the other assumptions remained unchanged.

It life expectancies were to increase by one year, the scheme habllmes would increase by £11.5m if all the other assumptions
remained unchanged.
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CREST NICHOLSON PLC o nE
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
15 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (¢ontinuéd)

Save As You Earn.

‘Executive Dlrectors and eligible employees are invited to make regular monthly contributions to a Sharesave scheme
administered by Equmltl On completion of the three-year contract period employees are able to purchase ordinary shares in the
Company based on the market price at the date of invitation Iess a 20% discount. There aré no performance conditions.

01 Aug 03'Aug, 26 Jul 30 Ju) 107 Aug 03 Aug.
Date of grant Y 2016 .2017 2018 ~ 2019 2020 2020
Optlons granled 1,208,742 453,663 712,944 935,208 1,624,259 256,132
Fair value at. measurement . ) ‘
date’ . £1.114 £1.06. £0.52 £0.54 '£0.36 £1.15
Share price on date of grani £3.56 £5.41 £3.77 £3.68 £1.94 £4. 14
Exercise price. ~ £2.86 £4.20 £3.15 £2.86 £1.70 £3.42
Veésting period 3 years 3years 3years: 3 years 3 years 3 years
Expected dividend yield 4.80% 5.10% 8.76%. '8.96% 5.20% 1.98%
Expécted votatility. 45.00% 35.00% 35.00% 35.00% 40.00% 45.30%
Risk free interest rate . 0.18% 0.30% _ 0.85% 0.38% -0.08% 0.14%
Valuation model. Binomial  Binomial  Binomial  Binomial  Binomial Binomial
Contractual life from. 01 :08. 16 '01.09:17 01.09:18 01.09.19 01.09.20 '01.09':21
Contractuallife to 01.03.20  01.03.21  01.03.22 '01.03.23  01.03.24 01.03.26
Weighted
_ ) . aveérage
Number of Numberof Numberof Numberof Numberof Numbeiof Total number exercise
Movements in the year options options options options options -~ optiéns -of options price
Outstandmg at 1"November o .
2019 110,933 147,582 451,381 905,320 - - 1,615,216 £3.06,
Granted during the year - - - 1,624,259 - 1,624,259 £1.70
Exercised during the yéar (107,158) (3,985) (9 707) (1,134) ’ - - {121,984) £2.93
Lapsed during the year .. (3,775).  (50,019). _ 315, 921 ) (606,550) (85,589) - {1,061,854) £2.92
Outs(andmg at 31 October i i . o
" 2020 - 93,578 125,753 297,636 1,638,670 - 2,055,637 £2.07
‘Granted during the year. - E - - - 256,132 256,132 £3.42'
Exercised during the year - - 137,133) (a,481) - (3,528) - (45,152) £3.01
‘Lapsed during the year - (93,578) (47,778).  (145,788)  (411,054). (11,838). (710,036) - £2.39
‘Outstanding at 31 October 7 ) R T ) ) -
.2021 A - - 40,842: 147,357 1,124,088 244,234 1.556.581 £2.12.
'Exercisable al 31 October .
2024 - - 40842 . - .- 40,842
Exercisable at 31 October ) :
2020 _-___ 93,578 < - - - 93,578
£m £m. £m £m £m £m Total €m
Charge to income for the
current year, - - - i - 0.1 - 0.1
Credit to Income for the prior - )
year - - (0.1) - - - {0.1)

‘ Registeréd no. 1040616 o
 Elassified as General



CREST NICHOLSON PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
15 - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (contmued)

Deferred bonus plan

Under the terms of cenam bonus schemes; some parts of bonus payments must be defeired into share options. The options
carry no performance criteria.and vest over one or-three ‘years. Options granted under the plan are exercisable between one and
10 years after the date of grant. Deferred bonus plan option numbers are based on the share price on the date of grant.

28 Feb 28 Feb 28 Feb 28 Feb 28 Feb 28 Feb 26 Féb 1 Mar

Date of grant 2017 2018 2019 2020 . 2020 ‘2020 2021 2021
Optionis grantéd 133,761 188,122 50,676 20,669 2,976 20,956 34,800 22,264
Fair value at
measurement dale ‘£5.41 £4.89  £395 £4.52 £4.52 £452  £3.28 £3.89.
Share price on dale of ) . . .
grant. . £5.41 £4.89 ‘£3.95 £4.52 £4.52 £4.52 £3.28 £3.42
Exercise price '£0:00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00,
113
Vesting period 3 years 3 years 1.year 3 years 1 year years’ 1year 3years
Expected dividend yield '
and volatility NIA N/A NIA N/A NIA N/A N/A NIA
Risk free interest rate ‘NIA N/A NIA N/A N/A NIA N/A N/A
‘Valuation model NIA- NIA NIA NI NA  NIA NiA NIA
Contractual life from 28,0247 '28.02.18 .28.0219 28.02.20 28.02.20. 28.02.20 26.02.21 01.03.21
Contractual life to 27.02.27 27.02.28 27.02.29 27.02.30 27.02.30 27.02.30 25.02.31 27.02.28
Number Number Number Number Number WNumbeif Numbér Number Total ~
of of © of of of of of of  nimber of

Movements in the year options  options  options options  options  options  optiohs  options options
Outsfanding ai 1 ) )
November 2019 84,104 135,822 31,860 - - - - - 251,786
Granted during the year o - - . 20,669 2,976 20,956 - - 44,601
Exercised during the year  (73,705) < {31,860) (20,669)  (2,976) . - . (129,210)
Lapsed dufing the year (10,399) - - - - - - - {10,399)
Outstanding at 31 October j )
2020 ) - 135822 - - < 20,956 - 156,778
Granited during the year - - - - - 34,800 22,264 57,084
Exgrcised during the year - {123,941) - - - (4,1 28) - (22,264) (150,333)
Lapsed during the year - (11,881) - - . (14,568) - - (26,449)
Outstanding al 31 October . .
2021 ) ) - - - - - 2,260 34,800 - 37,060
Exercisabte at 31 October A
2021 i ) ) ) ) B ) )
Exercisable at 31 October . R A ) . ] i .
2020 )

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m Total £m
Charge to income for the : :
current year - - - - - - - 0.3 0.1 0.4
Charge to income for the )
priof year - 0.1 - 0M . - 0.1 - 0.3

The weighted average exercise price of deferred bonus plan share options was £nil (2020: £nil).

Registered no. 1040616
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CREST.NICHOLSON PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
16 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (continued)

Total share incentive schemes ‘ 2021 2020
Number of Number

Movements in'the'year . qptiéﬁs of options‘
.Outstandmg at beglnnmg of the year . 4,984,036 4,685,139
Granted during the year 1,641,388 2,801,689
Exercised during the year (195,485) (251,194).
Lapsed during the year (1,625,422) (2,251,598)
Outstanding at €nd of the year , 4,804,517 4,984,036
Exercisable at.end of the year 42,360 95,096
- £m £m

Charge to income for share incentive schemes. 1.8 " 0.2
Chief Executive biy-out arrangement! - 0.3
Charge to.income for the year : 1.8 0.5

In 2019 as part of his lerms ol appolntment the Gmup made a commnmenl 1o Peter Truscolt lo buy—oul certain share-based- -awards 1rom his-previous employment
‘consisling of 143,713 shares in Crast Nicholson Haldings plc. During the’ pnor year, the commitment was salisfied in fail resullmg ina charge to income for that year of
£0.3m. .

The weighted average share price at the date of exerclse of share options exercised during the year was'£3.69 (2020: £4. 76)..

The optlons outstandlng had a range of exercise prices “of £nil to £3.42 (2020 £nil t6 £4.20).and a welghted average remaining
contractual life of 6.4 years (2020: 6.2 years). The gain on shares exercised during the year was £0.6m (2020: £1.5m).

16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2021 2020
' £m £m-
Non-current B
Trade receivables 2.2 5.5
Loss allowance on'trade receivables ] -
Due from jOIﬂl verntures : 54.3 61.0
Loss allowance on amounts due from joint ventures ' . (11.9) (10.9)
' 44.6 55.6
Current » .
Trade receivables s 25.2 27.3
Loss allowance on trade receivables | ’ (0.1) 0.1)
Contract assets . 56.7 53.9
Loss allowance on contract assets ’ (0.3) (0.3)
Due from group undertakmgs 266.5 o 1029
Due from joint ventures 13.6 4.4
Other receivables . 6.0 7.8
Prepayments and accrued income 1.0 15

... 368.6 197.4

Trade and other receivables mainly comprise contractual amounts due from housing associations, bulk salé purchasers and land

. sales to'other.housebuilders. Current trade recelvables of £11.6m have been collected as of 1 January 2022 (2020: £10.7m
have béen collected as of A Janiary 2021). The femaining balance is due accordung to.contractual terms, and no material
amounts are past due. At'the consolidated statement of financial position date the dlfference between the fair value of amounts
due from joint ventures and nominal value is £19.4m (2020: £17.9m).

Amounts due from Group undertakings are unsecured, repayable’'on demand and carry interest at 5%. ' Amounts due from Group
undertaklngs are stated after a loss allowance of £nil has been made (2020: £n||) in respect of expected credit Iosses assessed
on an estimate of defallt rates. Enil (2020: Enil) provision was made during the year, £nil (2020: £nil) was utilised, and £nil
(2020: £nil) provision was released during the year.

Amounts due from joint ventures comprises funding provided on four (2020: four) joint venture developmenls which are bemg
project managed by the Group and are repayable according to conlractual ‘arrangements. Amounts due from joint ventures are
stated net of losses of £7.4m (2020: £7.0m). See note 12 for additional details on the Group's interests in joint ventures.

_ ) Registered no. 1040616 _
Elgssified 35 General
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CREST NICHOLSON PLC -
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
16 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Amounts due from joint ventures are stated after a loss allowance of £11.9m (2020: £10.9m) in respect of expected credit
losses. This €stimate is based on a discounted cashflow analysis of the relevant joint ventures using ‘available cashflow
projections for the remainder of the project. £1.0m:(2020: £7.7m) provision was made during the year, £nil (2020: £nil) was
utilised and £nil (2020: £nil) provision was released during the year. The actual result depends on achiéved sales values and

delivery of the build to forecast.

Current trade receivables and contract assets are stated after a loss allowance of £0.4m (2020: £0.4m) in respect of expected
credit losses, assessed on an eshmate of default rates. £nil (2020: £0.2m) provision was made during the year, £nil (2020: £nil)

was utilised and £nil (2020: £nil) provision was released during the year.

2021 2020
Movements in total loss allowance for expected credit losses £m £m
Atbeginning of the year 11.3 3.4
Movement in the year on joint- venture balances . 1.0 7.7
Movement in the year on other receivables ' . - 0.2
At end of the year T 12.3 11.3

The total loss allowance for the Boriner Road LLP expected credit loss is £11.8m (2020: '£10.8m) which represents

managements best estimate based on current project forecasts. in the prior yeara £7.6m impalrment loss was recognised within

exceptional items. See note 4.

The maturity'of non-current.receivables is as follows:

2021 2020
£m £m
Due between one and two years 5.6 9.9
Due between two and five years 20.7 32.8
Due after five years 18.3 12.9
44.6 55.6
17 INVENTORIES
Restated!
2021 2020
£m £m
Work-in-progress . -968.0 897.6
Completed buildings including show homes 57.7 107.0
. Part exchange invéntories ) 141 20.9

1,039.8

1,025.5

' Réstated to reflecl the change in accounting policy on land options. See note 25.

Total inventories of £786.6m (2020: £535.7m) were rect_)gnised as cost of sales in the year.

48

During the year.and as detailed in note 4, the remaining unutilised residential 7.5% sales price provision has been released creating

an exceptional inventory impairment credit of £8.0m (2020: £33.9m exceptional charge).

Total inventories are stated net of a net realisable value provision of £20.9m (2020: £40.6m), mai'nl_y relating to the impairments as

disclosed in note 4.

Of the £20.9m remaining NRV provision, it is currently forecast that.over three quarters will be used.in the next financial year.

Movements in the NRV provision in the current and prior year are shown below.

2021 2020

£m £m

At 1 November ' 40.6 10.2
Pre- exceptlonal NRV (credited)/charged in the year (2.5) 4.0
Pre- excepuonal NRV used in the year (5.2) (2.1)
Excephonal NRV (credtted)/charged in the year (note 4) ' (8.0) 33.9
gxceptlonal NRV, useq on in the year . (4.0) (5.4)
Total movement in NRV in the year . . (19.7) 304
At'31 October 20,9 40.6

Regislered no. 1 040616
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CREST NICHOLSON PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
47 INVENTORIES (contmued)

During the prior year the Gr0up wrote off as an:exceptional item £13.8m of work in progress.and other associated costs on a
project where the scheme is no longer profitable. The combination of this and the exceptional NRV provided in the prior year of -
£33.9m is £47.7m, representing the total exceptional inventory impairment charde per note 4.

18 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

. 2021 2020
Non-current £m £m
Land payables on contractual terms 63.8 65.1
‘Other payables : 0.2 . 0.2
Accruals and deferred income 9.5 16.5
73.5 . 81.8

Current
Land payables on contractual terms ' 94.1 388
Other trade payables 32.0 '36.2
Contract liabilities 25.0 328
Amounts owed to joint ventures . 0.1 0.1
Taxes and social securily costs 1.8 24
Other payables . 7.0 4.0
Accruals ’ . 262.4 204.0

412.4 318.3

Land payables are recognised from the date of unconditional exchange .of contracts, and represents amourits due to fand
‘vendors for development sites acqulred All land payables are due accordmg to contractual tefms. Where land is purchased on
deferred setilement terms then the land and the land payable are discounted to their fair valug using the effective interest
method in'accordance with IFRS 9. The difference between the fair value and the nominal value is amortised over the deferment
period, with the financing element being charged as interest expense through the consolidated income statement. At 31 October
2021 the difference between the fair valuie and nominal value of non-current land payables is £3.5m (2020: £4.6m).

Contract liabilities represent payments on account received from customers in excess of billable work in progress on affordable
and other sales in butk on contracts in which revenue is recognised over time. Based on historical trends, the Directors expecta
significant propoition of the contract Iiabililies total to-be recognised as revenue in the next reporting period.

Amounts due to joint ventures is interest free and repayablé on démand. See note 12 for additional details on the Group's
interests in joint ventures.

Other trade payables mainly comprise amounts due to suppliers.and subcontractors retentions. Suppliers are settled according
to agreed payment tefms and subcontractor retentions are released once the retention condition has been satisfied.

Accruals arg mainly work in progress related where work has been performed but net yet invoiced.

Amounts owed to joint ventures are unsecured, repayable on demand and interest free.

19 PROVISIONS

Combustible Commercial Combustible Commercial Other

materials properties Total materials properties  provisions Total

2021 2021 2021 2020 2020 2020 2020

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

At beginning of the year 14.8 0.4 15.2 14.6 0.8 0.8 16.2

Provided in the year 31.2 0.1 31.3 26 . . 2.6

Utilised iin the year (3.4) . - {3.4) (2.4) . (0.4) (2.8)

Released in the year - - - - (0.4) (0.4) _(0.8)

Atend of the year 426 05 431 T 148 0.4 - _ 15.2
Of which:

Non-current 28.4 - 28.4 3.4 - - 34

Current 14.2 0.5 14.7 11.4 04 - 11.8

42.6 0.5 431 14.8 0.4 - 15.2

Registered no. 1040616
Elassified as general
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CREST NICHOLSON PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
19 PROVISIONS (continued)

Combustible materials
Following the Grenfell Tower tragedy in 2017 the Government commenced a review of fire-related building regulations, notably
those relating to extérnal walls, and issued new guidance for building owners which it centinues to revise.

On joining the Group in 2019, the new Executive Leadership Team quickly established a dedicated internal team to oversee and
govern the Group’s response to this changing regulatory backdrop as the interpretation of this guidance often varies between
professional advisors who are engaged to oversee the identification and implementation of any remedies.

This team meets regularly and is chaired by the Chief Executive with attendance from the Group Finance Director, Group
Production Director and Special Projects Director responsible for this area. In 2019 the team conducted a full review into all legacy
schemes it believed may be at risk from guidance at that time, any relevant regulations and considered any notification of claims.
Accordingly, the Group created a corbustible materials provision. In 2020 and 2021 this provision was subsequently increased to
reflect any changes to the Government guidance and how it may be interpreted over the Group's legacy portfolio, along with any
néw notifications received if it was considered that they represent a liability.

In addition, as time has passed the Group has also been able to apply the benefit of learned experience to develop a more accurate
assessment and forecast of its potential liability. As such the Group now has a detailed risk register of all legacy buildings in scope
which it regularly reviews. The team considers the application of the latest guidelines against each affected building, advice from its
technical or legal advisors along with relevant updates or notifications from a variety of stakeholders. Such sources can include
residents, management companies, freeholders, subcontractors, architects, morigage lenders, building control bodies and
independent fire engineers.

The review team consider the progress of any identified remediation works and adjusts the provision to reflect the Group's best
estimate of any future remediation works. As such the financial statements are prepared onthe Group's current best estimate of
these future costs and this may evolve in the future based on the result of ongoing inspections, further advice, the progress and
cost to complete of in-flight remediation works and whether Government legislation and regulation becomes more or less stringent
in this area. See note 22 for disclosures relating to further potential liabilities and recoveries relating to the combustible materials
provision. .

In this year's assessment of whether any further remédial works are required to be performed on legacy buildings, the Directors
have carefully considered whether the Group has a legal or constructive obllgatlon at the consolidated statement of financial
position date. A legal obligation exists where the Group owns the freehold of the building or is the Responsible Person under The
Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order and taking into account the impact of other advice notes issued by the Government since
December 2018, or, where the Group no longer own the freehold and it is made aware of buildings with defects or non-compliance:
with safety related building regulations at the time.

A constructive obligation is present if the Group has communicated to the involved parties (such as residents and building owners)
that it will undertake the remedial works. If the Group has identified that it has a legal or constructive obligation then a provision has
been recognised for the latest estimated cost of the remedial works. The calculation of any charge is complex, considering many
different inputs including the height and square footage of the impacted buildings, costs of interrogation, estimated costs of
replacement materials and labour, the extent of the works to be complete and potential-disruption to customers.

Accordingly, the Group recorded a further net combustible materials charge of £31.2m in the year ended 31 October 2021. This
charge comprises workmanship related defects £12.5m, design related defects £17.7m and other costs £1.0m. The further charge
is in addition to the £18.4m combustible materials charge made in 2019 and the £0.6m net combustible materials charge made in
2020. The main driver for the further charge in 2021 is the increase in claims that have been made since the September 2021
deadline for freeholders and managing agents to apply for the Government's Building Safety Fund.

During the year the Group has received new claims predominantly where it is no longer the freeholder of the building and following
the results of intrusive surveys where fire related defects have been identified, Approximately a third of this increase is due to
revisions of forecasts on previously assessed buildings arising as a result of a change in scope from intrusive surveys, and two
thirds on newly identified buildings requiring fire-related remedial works. These newly identified buildings could not have been
provided for previously as no claims had been made that required the recognition of a liability. The outflow of cash or other
economic benefit was therefore not previously considered as probable.

The Group spent £3.4m in the year across several buildings requiring further investigative costs, including balcony and cladding
related works.

The provision of £42.6m represents the Group’s best estimate of costs at 31 October 2021. The Group will continue to assess the
magnilude and utilisation of this provision in future financial reporting periods. The Group recognises that Government guidance in
this area is evolving over time and that assumptions may require revising. In addition, required remediation works could be subject
to further inflationary pressures and cash outflows on currently unprovided sites may also become probable in the future.

The Group expects to have completed any required remedies within a five-year period, using £14.2m of the remaining provision
within one year, and the balance within two to five years.

Registered no. 1040616
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CREST NICHOLSON PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
19- PROVISIONS (continued)

The Group is continuing to review the recoverability of costs incurred from third parties where it has a contractual right of recourse.
In the year £2.4m was recovered from third parties, which has been recorded as an exceptional credit in the consolidated income
statement. See note 4 for income statement disclosure.

Commercial properties o '

' Commercial properties are dilapidation provisions on commercial properties where the Group previously held the head lease. All
leases dre now expired and the provision represents forecast costs to be incurred in bringing the buildings back to their original
condition. .

20 SHARE CAPITAL

2021 2020
£m £m

Allotted and fully paid
115,294,459 Ordinary shares of 10p each (2020: 115,294,459) 1.5 11.5

21 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's financial instruments comprise cash, bank loans, trade and other receivables, financial assets at fair value through profit
and loss’and trade payables, The main objective of the Group's policy towards financial instruments is to maximise returns on'the
Group's cash balances, manage the Group's working capital requirements and finance the Group's ongoing operations.

Capital management ‘ _ ) .
The Group’s policies seek to match long-term assets with long-term finance and ensure that there is sufficient working capital to meet
the Group's commitments as they fall due, comply with the loan covenants and continue to sustain trading.

Financial risk

As vurtually all of the operations of the Group afe in sterling, there is no direct currency risk, and thus the Group's main financial risks
are credil risk, liquidity risk and market interest rate risk. The Board is responsible for managing these risks and the policies adopted
are as set out below.

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or other counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations; and arises principally from the Group's cash deposits, as most recewables are secured on land and buildings.

The Grotip has cash deposits of £52.4m (2020: £41.5m) which are held by providers of the parent Company's banking facilities.
These are primarily provided by HSBC Bank Plc, Barclays Bank Plc, Lloyds Bank Pic and Natwest Group PLC, being four of the UK’s
leading financial institutions. Surplus cash is placed on deposit with banks with a minimum credit rating, in accordance with Group
policy. The secunty and sunabmty of these banks is monitored by treasury on a regular basis.

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss. as described in,note 13, of £5.3m (2020: £5.4m) are receivables on extended
terms granted as part of a sales transaction and are secured by way of a legal charge on the relevant property and therefore credit
risk is considered low.

The carrying value of trade and other receivables is mainly amounts due from housing association sales, iand sales and
commercial sales and equates to the Group's exposure to credit risk which is set out in note 16. Amounts due from joint ventures
of £56.0m (2020: £54.5m) is funding provided on four (2020: four) joint venture developments which are being project managed
by the Group and are subject to contractuai arrangements. The Group has assessed the expected credit loss impact on the
carrying value of trade and other receivables as set out in note 16. Within trade receivables the largest single amount
outstanding at the year end is £3.8m (2020: £5.5m) which is within agreed terms.

In managing risk the Group assesses the credit risk of its counterparties before entering into a transaction. No credit limits were
exceeded during the repomng period, and the Directors do not expect any material losses from non-performance of any
counterparties, including in respect of receivables not yet due. No material financial assets are past due or are considered to be
impaired as at the consolidated statement of financia!l position date (2020: none).

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. Cash flow forecasts are

produced to monitor the expected cash flow reqmrements of thé Group against the available facilities. The principal risks within these
_ cash flows relate to achieving the level of sales volume and prices in line with current forecasts.
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CREST NICHOLSON PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED' FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
21 FINANCIAL RiSK MANAGEMENT (contlnued)

The following are lhe_co,ntractua’l maturities of the financial !i’abilities.qf the Group at 31:October 2021:

2021 Carrying Contractual Withint 2.3 More-than
value cash flows year 1-2years  years J years
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Othet financial liabilities carrying o interest 463.7 467.4 390.5. 54.6 17.4 4.9
" 463.7__ . 4674, 3905 54.6 17.4 4.9

The following are the contractual maturities of the financial liabilities of the Group at 31 Octaber 2020:
2020 Carrying Contractual Within 1 o 2-3 More than
valie ¢ash flows year 1-2years years 3 years
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Other financial liabilities.carrying:no interest 3719 376.9 288.6 36.0 29.5 22.8
3714.9 376.9 - 288.6 36.0° 29.5 22.8

Market interest rate risk

52

."Market interest rate fisk reflects the Group's exposure, to xﬂuckuatlons to: lnterest rates in the market. The risk arises because the
Group s.other Ibans are subject to floating interést rates based ‘oh the EU reference rate..For the year ended 31 October 2021 it is’
estimated that an increase.of 1% ini interest rates applying.for:the full yéar would decrease the. Grouip's profit before taxaticn by £nil

(2020: £nil).

At 31 October 2021, the interest raté profile of thie financial liabilitiés

of the Group was: -
Carrying amount

Financial
) . Floating Fixed liabilities
Sterling rate fate . cariying
financial financial ) no
liabilities liabilities interest Total
£m £m £m £m
Financial liabilities . - 463.7 463.7 .
- - 463.7 463.7
At 31 October 2020, the interest rate profile of the financial llabnlmes of the ‘Group was:
. Carrying amount
Financial
Fioating Fixed liabilities
Steriing ' rate ~ rate carrying
: financial financial no
liabilities liabilities interest Total
J £m £m £m £m
Financial liabilities .- - 371.9 371.9
t S - 3119 371.9

The floating rate financial liabilities are su'bj.ect lo interest rates refefenced to the EU reference rate, and ag‘reement'witlhin'the

Group respectively,

- For finangial liabilities which have no interest payable bul-for which imputed intérest is charged, consisting of land creditors, the

welghted average period to maturity is 24 months (2020: 35 months)
The maturity of the financial liabilities is:

Repdyable.within one year

Repayable between one and two years

Reépayable bétween two and five years

‘Repayable after five years

Registered no. 1040616
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2021 2020

£m £m
387.6 285.6
53.9 34.2
21.0 50.5
1.2 1.6
4637 3719
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CREST NICHOLSON PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
21 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Fair values

Financial assets '

The -Group’s financial assets comprise . cash’ equivalents, financial assets at fair value through profit'and loss, trade and other

receivables and contract assets. The carrying amounts of financial assets.is a reasonable approximation of fair value which would'be

measured under a level 3 hieraichy. At 31 October 2021 cash equivalents.consisted of sterling cash deposns of £52.4m (2020:

£41.5m), with solicitors and on.current account, £6.3m (2020: £5.4m) of financial assets at fair value’ through profit and loss, £33.3m
" (2020: .£40.5m)of trade and other recelvables £266.5m (2020 £102.9m) of amounts due from group undedakings, and £56.0m

(2020: £54.5m) of amounts due from joint venturés, Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss are carried at fair value and

categonsed as level 3 {inputs not based on observable market data) within the hierarchical classification of IFRS 13 Revised,

Financial liabilities

The Group's financial llabllmes comprise land payments on contractual (terms Other trade payables, amounts due to .group.
'undertakings, amounts due to'joint ventures, lease liabilities, trade ‘payables and accruals the carrymg amounts of which are deemed
" to be a reasonable apptoXumanon to their fair. value: The fair values of the other Ioans are Calculated based on the presenl value of
future principal-and interest cash flows, discounted ‘at.the market rate of, lnterest at the consolidated statement of financial position
date.,

The fair values of the borrowings detérmined on this basis are:

2020 Face Carrying ‘Fair
Nominal interest rate value value  value Maturity

£m £m £m
LIFF Joans EU Reference rate + 2.2% 1.9 1.9 1.9 ’ 2020
Amounts due to, Group undertakings 5.0% .3.3 3.3 3.3 Ondemand

Total current intérest bearing loans s 6.2 5.2 5.2

Financial assets and liabilities by category

2021 2020
‘Financial assets . £m £m
Sterling cash;deposits 52.4 415
Trade receivables . 27.3. 327
Amounts due from group undertakings : 266.5 102.9
Amounts dug from joint ventures : 56.0 54.5
Other receivables 6.0 7.8
Total loans and receivables . 408.2 239.4
Other financial assets 53 54
Total financial assets ) 413.5 244.8
2021 2020
Financial liabilities . £m £m
Land payments on contractual terms 157.9 Jos.s
".Othet trade payables 32.0 36.2
Amounts due to joint ventures ‘ 0.1 0.1
Lease liabilities ) : 4.6 7.0
Other payables . 7.2 4.2
Accruals '261.9 220.5

Financial liabilities at amortised cost ’ 463.7° T 3719
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CREST: NICHOLSON PLC
NOFES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS; (contlnued)

22 {CONTINGENCIES'AND COMMITMENTS

There are perfoﬁﬁénce borids: and other engagements mcludlng lhose»m respect ef

‘the;guidance is yet{o b ,f
quantified.

contl ﬂgent asset§ have been fééogﬁiséd in thls years ‘nanmal sté e ments for such |lems

23. MOVEMENT IN NET C-_ASHI(_DEBT)

A}

Cash and cash:eqgiivalents ' _ L

2021

£m

‘Mgvement
£m, -
10.9

bl "i'm:\;én'mr‘e partriers, uhde“ri;ke vin the
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CREST NICHOLSON PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

24 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Transactions between fellow subsidiaries, which are related parties, are eliminated on consolidation, as well as transactions
between the Company and its subsidiaries during the current and prior year. Transactions between the Group and key
management personnel mainly comprise remuneration which is given in note 6. Detailed disclosure for Board members is given
within the Directors’ Remuneration Report. There were no other transactions between the Group and key management
personnel in the current or prior year.

The Company's Directors and Non-Executive Directors have associations other than with the sCompany. From time to time the
Group may buy products or services from organisations with which a Director or Non-Executive Director has an association.
Wheré this occurs, it is on normal commercial terms and without the direct involvement of the Diréctor or Non-Executive .
Director.

The Group had the following transactions with its joint ventures in the year:

2021 2020

. ) £m £m

Interest income on joint venture funding . 2.8 ) 2.7
Project management fees received 1.5 14
Amounts due from joint ventures, net of expected credit losses 56.0 54.5
Amounts due_to joint ventures 0.1 0.1
Funding to joint ventures (13.0) (15.6)
Repayment of funding from joint ventures 11.5 10.1

25 CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Inventories

In previous financial statements options purchased in respect of land were initially recognised as a prepayment within inventories at
cost and subject to annual impairment reviews, with provisions made to reflect loss of value. When a land contract was
subsequently secured from an option subject to impairment; the previously impaired costs were written back to the income
staterment and capitalised within work-in-progress. Upon development of the land, this capitalised cost is charged to cost of sales as
housing units are sold.

The Group has changed this policy to be more in line with common industry practice and to provide more reliable and relevant
infarmation, which it believes improves the understanding of the performance of the business. Land options are now written down
on a straight-line basis over the life of the option, with no subsequent write back to the consolidated income statemient when a land
contract is secured. The updated policy is disclosed within note 1.

This change in policy will result in the derecognition of £7.3m of land options previously written back to the income statement, and
create an associated deferred tax asset of £1.4m. The previous income statement write backs did not occur in the years ended 31
October 2019 or 31 October 2020, thus the consclidated income statement for these years does not require restatement. The
impact on previously reported consolidated statement of financial position is presented overleaf.
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CREST NICHOLSON PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
25 CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING-POLICIES (continued)

As at As at
1 November 31 October
2049 2020
£m £m
Deferred tax assets
As previously reported 2.9 5.0
Change in accounting-policy . 1.4 14
As reported 43 6.4
Inventories )
As previously reported : 1,165.1 1,032.8
"Chahge in-acedunting policy (7.3) {7.3)
As reported : 1,157.8 1,025.5
‘Total assets .
As previously reported 1,432.0 1,352.8
Change in‘accounting policy- ‘ {5.9) (5.9)
As reported 1,426.1 1,346.9
Net assets
As pieviously reéported ) ) 938.2 916.7
Change in accounting policy {5.9) (5.9)
As reported 932.3 910.8
Retained earnings ] o
As previously reported 808.4 786.9
Change in ‘accounting policy (5.9) (5.9)
As reported ' 802.5 781.0
"Total equity
‘As previously reported 938.2 916.7
Change in accounting policy {(5.9) (5.9)
910.8

As reported . . » 932.3

26 IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE PARENT COMPANY

The immediate parent Company is Castle Bidco Limited, which is incorporated in Great Britain.and registered in England.and Wales.

56

The, largest group of undenakmgs ‘for which Group financial statements are drawn up, and ultimate parent company is that headed by
Crest Nicholson-Holdings pic, which is-incorporated in Great Britain and-registered in England and Wales. Copies of its Group financial

statements can be obtained from the Company's registered office which is.shown in the Directors’ Report.
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CREST NICHOLSON PLC.
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contlnued)
27 GROUP UNDERTAKINGS

In accordance with $409 CA2006, the foilowing is a list of all the Group's undertakings at 31,October 2021.
Subsidiary undertakings
At 31 October 2021 the Company had the:following subsidiary undertakings which are included in the consolidated financial

statements. All subsidiaries were incorporated in Eng!and and Wales.

Votlng rights’and,
shareholding_ .

Registered:  Active / (direct or
Entity name office  dormant Yearend date indirect)
Bartley Wood Management Services No.2:Limited 1 -8 31.March 100%
Bath Rivérside Estate Managenient Company Limited 2. .9 31 October 100%
Bath Rivérside L|berty Management-Company Limited 2. 9 31 October: 100%
Brightwells Residential 1 Company Limited 1 9 31 October 100%
Bristol Parkway North Limited” 1 9 31 October 100%
Building 7 Harbourside Management Company Limited 2: 8 :31'December 58.33%
vBqulngs 3A, 3B & 4'Harbourside Management 2. 9 .31.December 83.33%
Company Limited cot . i o
Clevedaon Developments Limited ' 1 9. 310ctober | - 100%
Clevedon Investment Limited* 1 8 ‘31 October 100%
CN Nominees Limited* 1 9. 31 October . 100%
CN Properties Limited* 1 9 31 October 100%
CN Secretarial Limited 1 ] 31 October 3 100%
CN Shelf A LLP: 1 9. 30-June 100%
CN Shelf2 LLP 1 9. 30 June 100%
CN Shelf 3 LLP- 1 9 30 June 100%
Crest (Claybury) Limited* 1 9 31 October 100%
Crest Developments Limited* 1 9 31 October 100%
Crest Estates Limited i 9 31 October 100%
Crest Homes (Eastern) Limited* 1 9 :31 October . 100%
Crest Homes (Midlands) Limited* 1 9 31 October . 100%
Crest Homes (Nominees) Limited i 9 31 October 100%
Crest Homes (Nominees No. 2) Limited 1 8 31 October 100%
Créest Homés (Northern) Limited 1 9: 31 October 100%
Crest Homes {South East) Limited, 1 9 31October 100%
Crést Homes (South West) Limited - 1 9 31 October 100%
Crest Homes (South) Limited , 1 9 31 October 100%
Crest Homes (Wessex) Limited 1 9 31 October 100%
Crest Homes {(Westerham) Limited 1 9. 31 October 100%
Crest Homes Limited 1 - 31 October 100%
Crest Manhattan Limited 1 ] 31 October 100%
.. Crest Nicholson (Bath) Holdings Limited” 1 9 31 October 100%
Crest Nicholson (Chiltern) Limited 1 9 31 October 100%
.Crest Nicholson (Eastern) Limited 1 9 31 October 100%
Crest Nicholson (Epsom) Limited* 1 9 31 October 100%
Crest Nicholson (Henley-on-Thames) Limited 1 8 . 31 October 100%
Crest Nichdlson (nghlands Farm) Limited’ 1 9 31 October 100%
Crest Nicholson (Londinium) Limited 1 9’ 31 October - - 100%
Crest Nicholson (Midlands). Limited 1 9 31 October 100%
Crest Nicholson (Peckham) Limited . 1 ‘8 31 October 100%
Crest Nicholson (South East) lented 1 9 31 October 100%
Crest Nicholson (South West) Limited 1 9 31 October 100%
Crest Nichalson (South) Limited - 1 9 31 October . 100%
Crest Nicholson (Stotfold) Limited 1 8 31 October 100%

* Direct shareholding
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CREST NICHOLSON PLC’
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

27 GROUP UNDERTAKINGS (continued)
Voting rights and

Registered Active / Year end ‘shareholding

Entity name office  dormant date (direct or indirect)
Crest Nichdlson Developments (Chertsey) Limited* 1 8 31 October 100%
Crest Nicholson Operations Limited” 1 8 31 October 100%
Crest Nicholson Pension Trustee Limited* 1 9 31 January 100%
Crest Nicholson Projects Limited 1 9 31 October 100%
Crest Nicholson Properties Limited 1 9 31 October 100%
Crest Nichoison Regeneration Limited 1 9 31 October 100%
Crest Nicholson Residential (Londdn) Limited 1 9 31 October 100%
Crest Nicholson 'Residentiai (M:dlands) Limited” 1 9 31 October 100%
Crest Nicholson Residential (South East) Limited 1 9 31 October 100%
Crest Nicholson Residential (South) Limited* 1 9 31 October - 100%
Crest Nicholson Residential Limited 1 9 31 October 100%
Crest Partnership Homes Limited 1 9 31 October 100%
Crest Strategic Projects Limited 1 9 31 October 100%
Eastern Perspective Management Company Limited , 1 9 31 October 100%
Essex Brewery (Walthamistow) LLP- 1 9 31 October 100%
Harbourside Leisure Management Company Limited 1 8 30 December 71.43%
Landscape Estates Limited 1 9 31 October 100%
Mertonplace Limited* 1 9 31 Octlober 100%
Nicholson Estates (Century House) leuted' 1 ] 31 October . 100%
Park.Central Management (Central Plaza) Limited 1 9 31 October 100%
Eliis Mews (Park Central) Management Limited 1 8 31 October © 100%
Park Central Management (Zone 11) Limited 1 9 31 October 100%
Park Central Management (Zone 12) Limited 1 9 31 October 100%
Park Central Managemient (Zone 1A North) Limited 1 9 31 October ’ 100%
Park Central Management (Zone 1A .South) Limited 1 9 31 October ' 100%
Park Central Managéement (Zone 18) Limited 1 9 31 October . 100%
Park Central Management (Zone 3/1) Limited 1 9 31 October . 100%
Park Central Management (Zone 3/2) Limited 1 9 31 October 100%
Park Central- Management (Zone 3/3) Limited 1 9 31 October, 100%
Park Central Management (Zone 3/4) Limited 1 9 31 October 100%
Park Central Management (Zone 4/41'& 42) Limited 1 9., 31 October 100%
Park Central Management (Zone 4?43/44) Limited 1 9 31 October, 100%
Park Central Management (Zone 5/53) Limited 1 9 31 October 100%
Park Central Management (Zone 5/54) Limited 1 9 31 October 100%
Park:Central Management (Zone 5/55) Limited 1 9 31 October 100%
Park Central Managemem {Zone 6/61-64) Limited 1 9 31 October 100%
Park Central Management (Zone 7/9) Limited 1 9 31 October 100%
Park Central Management (Zone 8) Limited 1 8 31 Qctober 100%
Park Central Management (Zone 9/91) Limited 1 9 31 January 100%
Park West Management Services Limited* 1 8 31 March 62,00%

* Direct shareholding
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CREST NICHOLSON PLC
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contlnued)
27 GROUP UNDERTAKINGS (continued)

Subsidiary audit exemption
The following subsidiaries have taken advantage of an exemption from audit under section 479A of the Companies Act 2006.
Crest Nicholson plc has provided a statutory guarantee for any outstanding liabilities of these subsidiaries.

Clevedon Investment Limited (00454327)

Crest Homes (Nominees No. 2) Limited (02213319)

Crest Nicholson (Henley-on-Thames) Limited (03828831)
Crest Nicholson (Peckham) Limited (07296143)

Crest Nicholson (Stotfold) Limited (08774274) .

Crest Nicholson Developments (Chertsey) Limited (04707982)

Joint venture undertakings

At 31 October 2021 the Group had an interest in the following principal joint venture undertakings which are equity accounted
within the consolidated financial statements. The principal activity of all undertakings is that of residential development. All joint
ventures were incorporated in England and Wales. -

Shareholding

Registered Active / Year end (direct or
Entity name ' : office  Dormant date indirect)
Material joint ventures
Bonner Road LLP 6 8 31 March 50%
Crest A2D (Walton Court) LLP 1 8 31 March 50%
Crest Sovereign (Brooklands) LLP 5 8 31 October 50%
Elmsbrook (Crest A2D) LLP 7 8 31 March 50%
Other joint ventures not material to the Group .
Brentford Lock Limited 3 8 31 December 50%
Crest/Vistry (Epsom) LLP 1 8 31 October 50%
Crest Nicholson Bioregional Quintain LLP 1 8 31 October 50%
English Land Banking Company Limited 1 8 31 October ° 50%
Haydon Development Company Limited 4 8 30 April 21.36%
North Swindon Development Company Limited 4 8 31 October 32.64%
Registered office: Active/Dormant:
1 Crest House, Pyrcroft Road, Chertsey, Surrey KT16 9GN. 8 Active
2 Units 1, 2 & 3 Beech Court, Wokingham Road, Hurst, Reading RG10 0RU. 9 Dormant

3 Persimmon House, Fulford, York YO19 4FE.

4 6 Drakes Meadow, Penny Lane, Swindon, Wiltshire SN3 3LL.

5 Sovereign House, Basing View, Basingstoke RG21 4FA.

6 Level 6, 6 More London Place, Tooley Street, London SE1 2DA.
7 The Point, 37 North Wharf Road, London W2 1BD.

Joint operations

The Group is party to a joint unincorporated arrangement with Linden Homes Limited, the purpose of which was to acquire, and
develop, a site in Hemel Hempstead, Herfordshire. The two parties are jointly responsible for the control and management of the site’s
development, with each party funding 50% of the cost of the land acquisition and development of the site, in return for 50% of the
returns. As such this arrangement was designated as a joint operation.

The Group is party to a joint unincorporated arrangement with CGNU Life Assurance Limited the purpose of which is to acquire, and

develop, a site in Chertsey, Surrey. The two parties are jointly responsible for the control and management of the site's development,
with each party funding 50% of the cost of the land acquisition and development of the site, in return for 50% of the returns. As such

this arrangement has been designated as a joint operation.

The Group is party to a joint arrangement with Passion Property Group Limited the purpose of which was to develop a site in London.
The development was completed in 2014 and there are no material balances in the Group financial statements relating to this joint
arrangement as at 31 October 2021. The two parties were jointly responsible for the control and management of the site's development,
with each party having prescribed funding obligations and returns. As such this arrangement has been designated as a joint operation.

in line with the Group's accounting policies, the Group has recognised its share of the jointly controlled assets and liabilities, and
income and expenditure, in relation to these joint arrangements on a line-by-line basis in the consolidated statement of financial
position and consolidated income statement as there is no legat entity in place and the arrangements as structured such that the
Group has a direct interest in the underlying assets and liabilities of each arrangement..
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CREST NICHOLSON PLC
COMEANY, STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As-at 31 October. 2021

Note 2021 2020
£m . £m
ASSETS
‘Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 4 1.2 2.0.
Right-of-use.assets 5 - 0.3 0.9
Invéstments 6 20.4 20.4.
Deferred tax assets 7 1.1 0.9
Trade and other receivables 8 9.6 22.6
32,6 46.8
Current assets . o
Trade and othér receivables 8 280.3 236.7
Cash and cash equivalents ) 1.9 2.1
- 2822 ’ .238.8
TOTAL ASSETS ’ * 314.8 ) -285.6
LIABILITIES
Non-current Jiabilities
Lease liabilities : 5 {0.2) ) {0.8).
' ’ (0.2) (0.8)
Current liabilities ]
Trade and other payables : 9 (36.2) (18.1)
Lease liabilities 5 (0.5) {0.5)
: ' (36:7) {18.6)
TOTAL LIABILITIES ) (36.9) . (19.4)
NET ASSETS 277.9 266.2
© EQUITY
Called up share capital ) 10 1.5 11.5
Share premium account 653 . 65.3
Capital redemption reserve 38.0 38.0
Capital contribution reserve 15.0 15.0
Retained earnings ) 148.1 . 1364
Total Equity 2779, 266.2

Under séction 408 6f the Companies Act 2006 the Company is exempt from the requirement to present its own p,rofit and loss’
account. The Company recorded a profit for the financia) year of £10.9m (2020: £12.6m).

The financial statements on pages 61 to 70 were approved.by the Board of Directors on 17 February 2022 and signed on its
behalf by:
On behalf of the Board

D Cooper
Diréctor
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CREST NiCHOLSON PLC

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the yearended 31 Octaber 2021

Balance at.1 November

2019, .
Total comprehensive
income for the'year
Transactions with
shareholders:
Equity-setiled share-
based payments$
‘Balance at 31 October
2020.

Total comprehensive
income for-the year
Transactions with,

. shareholders:
Equity-settled share-
based paymerits:
Balance at 31 October
2021

Elassified as General

Share Capital Capital _

Share premium redemption  :ontribution Retained Total
.capital’  account téserve resejvé earnings: equiity
£m' £m £m £m £m £m
11.5 65.3 38.0 15.0 123.3 253.4

- - . - 12,6 12.6

. R . - 05 0.5
EEE 65:3 38.0 150 1364 266.2
. . - - 10.9 10.9

e - = = 0.8 0.8

115 65.3 38.0 150 148.1 277.9
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CREST NICHOLSON PLC
NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Crest Nicholson plc (the ‘Company') is a public company limited by shares and incorporated and domiciled in the UK. The address
of the registered office is Crest House, Pyicroft Road, Chertsey, Surrey KT16 9GN. The Company financial statements have been
prepared and approvéd by the Directors in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 101 ‘Reduced Disclosure Framework’
(‘FRS 107').'in accordance wrth the Companies Act 2006 as applicable, and have been prepared on the historical cost basis. In
previous period the Financial statements were prepared under the historical Cost accounting rules and in accordance with
applicable UK accounting standards. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FRS 101 requires the Directors to
make assumptions and judgements that affect the application of policies and reported amounts within the financial statements.
Assumptions and judgements are based on experience and other factors that the Dlrectors consider.reasonable under the
crrcumstances Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The financial stalements are presented in pounds sterling and amounts stated are denominated in millions (Em). The accountmg
policies have been applied consistently in deahng with |tems which are considered material.

These financial statements present mformatron about the Company as an’individual undertaklng and not about its Group, Under
section 408 of the Companies Acl 2006 the Company is exempt from the requirement to present its own profit and loss account.

As outiined in FRS 101 paragraph 8(a) the Company is exempt from the requirements of paragraphs 45(b) and 46 to 52 of IFRS 2
'Share-based Payments’. This exemption has been taken in the preparation of these financial statements.

As outlined in FRS 101 paragraph 8(d-e) the Company.is exempt from the requirements of IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments:
Disclosures", and from the requirements of paragraphs 91 to 99 of IFRS 13 'Fair Value Measurement’. These' exemptiops have
been taken in the preparation of these financial statements.

As outlined in FRS 101 paragraph 8(h) the Company is exempt from the, requiremerit to prepare a cash flow statement on the
grounds that a parent undertaking includes the Company in its:own published’ consolldated financial statements This exemption
has been taken in the preparation of these financial statements..

As outlined in FRS 101 paragraph 8(») the. Company is exempt from the requirement to provide information about the impact of
IFRSs that have been |ssued but are not yet effective: This exemption has been taken in the preparation of these financial
statements.

Under FRS 101 paragraph 8(j) the Company is exempt .from the'requrrementv to disclose related party transactions with Crest
Nicholson Holdings pic andits subsidiary undertakings on the grounds that it is a wholly owned subsidiary undertaking of Crest
Nicholson Holdings plc. Thrs exemption has been taken in the preparation of these financial statements.

Judgements made by the Directors. in the application-of these accountrng policies that have.significant effect on-the-financial
statements and eslimates with a significant risk of material adjustment in the next year are discussed below. The accounting policies
set out below have, unless otherwise stated, been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial statements.

Gomg concern

The Directors reviewed detailed cashflows and financial forecasts for the next year and summary cashflows and financial forecasts
for the following two years and the ultimate parent undertaking intends to provide such funds and financial support to enable the
Company for at least twelve months from the date the board approved these financial statements to trade and meet its’ liabilities as
they fall due. For these reasons, the Directors consider it appropnate to prepare the financial statements of the Company and Group
on a going concern basis.

Adoption of new and revised standards )
There were no new standards, amendments or interpretations that were adopted by the Company and effective for the first time
for the financial year.beginning 1'November 2020 that had a material impact on the Company.

The adoption of the other amendments and annual improvements in the period did not have a material impact on the financial
statements.
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CREST NICHOLSON PLC
NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contlnued)
1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Software as a Service (Saa$S) arrangements Implementation costs including costs to configure or customise a cloud provider's
application software are recognised as operating expenses when the services are received.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost includes the original purchase price of the asset
and the costs attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition. Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of the assets
on a straight-line basis te their estimated residual value over its expected useful life at the following rates:

Fixtures and fittings 10%
Computer equipment and non- SaaS software 20t0 33%

The asset residual values, carrying values and useful lives are reviewed on an annual basis and adjusted if appropriate at each
statement of financial position sheet date.

Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
The Company assesses at lease inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. The Company recognises a right of use asset
and a lease liability at lease commencement.

The right of use asset is initially recorded at the present value of future lease payments and subsequently measured net of
depreciation, which is charged to the income statement as an administrative expense over the shorter of its useful economic life or
its lease term on a straight line basis.

The Company recognises lease liabilities at the present value of future lease payments, lease payments being discounted at the
rate implicit in the lease or the Company's incremental borrowing rate as determined with reference to the most recently issued
financia! liabilities carrying interest of the Group. The discount is subsequently unwound and recorded in the income statement over
the lease term as a finance expense. The lease term comprises the non-cancellable period of the contract, together with periods
covered by ‘an option o extend the lease where the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option.

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases that have a lease term of
twelve months or less and leases of fow value assets. The Company recognises the lease payments associated with these leases
as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Investments
Investments in Group undertakings are included in the statement of financial position at cost less any provision for impairment.

Taxation

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised in the Company’s income statement except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income, in which case it is also recognised in. other comprehensive
income.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on taxable profit for the year and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous
years. Taxable profit is profit before tax per the Company’s income statement after adjusting for income and expenditure that is not
subject to tax, and for items that are subject to tax in other accounting periods. The Company's liability for current tax is calculated’

. using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the statement of financial position date. Where uncertain tax
liabilities exist, the liability recognised is assessed as the amount that is probable to be payable.

Deferred tax is provided in full on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be avallable against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred tax is calculated using tax rates that have been substantively enacted by the statement of financial position date.

Dividends
Final and interim dlvudend distributions to the Company’s shareholders are recorded in the Company's financial statements in the
earlier of the period in which they are approved by the Company's shareholders, or paid.
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CREST NICHOLSON PLC
NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) -

Employee benefits

Share-based payments

The fair value of equity-settled, share-based compensation plans is recognised as an employee expense with a corresponding
increase in equity. The fair value is measured as at the date the options are granted and the charge amended if vesting does not take
place due to non-market conditions not being met. The fair value is spread over the period during which the employees become
unconditionally entitled to the shares and is adjusted to reflect the actual number of options that vest. At the statement of financial
position date, if it is expected that non-market conditions will not be satisfied, the cumulative expense recogmsed in rélation to the
relevant options is reversed. The proceeds received are credited to share capital (nominal value) and share premium when the options
are exercised.

Financial assets

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently classified into one of the following measurement categories:
e measured at amortised cost

« measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

* measured subsequently at fair value through other comprehénsive income (FVOCI)

The classification of financial assets depends on the Company's business model for managing the asset and the contractual terms
of the cash flows. Assets that are held for the collection of coptractual cash flows that represent solely payments of principal and
interest are measured at amortised cost. with any interest income recognised in the income statement using the effective interest rate
method. Financial assets that do not meét the Criteria to be measured at amortised cost are classified by the Company as measured
at FVTPL. Fair value gains and losses on financial assets measured at FVTPL are recognised in the income statement and presented
within net operating expenses. The Company currently has no financial assets’ measured at FVOCI.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised mmally at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment. A provision for impairment of trade and other receivables is established based on an
expected credit loss model applying the simplified approach, which uses a Ilfetlme ‘expected loss allowance for all trade and other
receivables. The amount of the loss is recognised separately in the income statement. Current trade and other receivables do not
carry any interest and are stated at their amortised cost, as reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable
amounts. Non-current trade and other receivables are discounted to present value when the impact of discounting is deemed to be
raterial, with any discount to nominal value being recognised in the income statement as interest income over the duration of the
deferred payment.

Cash and cash equivalents )
Cash and cash equivalents are cash balances in hand and in the bank.

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of direct transaction costs. Finance charges are accounted for on an accruals
basis in the income statement using the effective interest method and are added to the carrying amount of the instrument to the
extent that they are not settled in the period in which they arise or included within interest accruals. The carrying amount of interest-
bearing loans and borrowings equates to their fair value.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently classified into onge of the following measurement
categories:

* measured at amortised cost

* measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Non-derivative financial liabilities are measured at FVTPL when they are considered held for trading or designated as such on initial
recognition. The Company has no non-derivative financial liabilities measured at FVTPL.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. Trade and other payables on deferred terms are initially recorded at their fair value, with the discount to
nominal value being charged to the income statement as an interest expense over the duration of the deferred period.

Provisions

A provision is recognised in the statement of financial position when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as
a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and the
amount can be reliably estimated.

Accounting estimates and judgements .

The preparation of the financial statements requires the Directors to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabllities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underiying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the year in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that year, or.in the year of revision and future years if the revision affects both current and future years.
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CREST NICHOLSON PLC
NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
1 ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

The Directors consider the key sources of estimation. uncertainty that-has & fisk of causing a material adjustment to the carfyjing
value of as’sets and liabilities are as described below.

Carrying value of investments
Investments are stated at cost andsubject to tmpalrment provision. The Directors consider the net assets of investments m their

assessment of thé required impairment provision.

‘Share-based payments
Assumptions are made in determining the fair value of employee services received in- exchange for the grantof options under
share-based payments awards at the dafe of grant, and of the likely outcome of non-market conditions.

Audit fee
Auditors’ remunération for audit of these financial statéments was £25,000 (2020: £18,000) and is tncluded within the audit fees
within note 5 of the consolidated financial statements.

2 DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES

2021 2020
{a) Monthly average number of persons employed by the Company Number Number
‘Development : : . 4 4

The Directors consider ali employees of to be employed within the same category of Development.

2021, 2020

(b) Staff costs and Directors’ remuneration . £m £m
Salaries and short:term employee benefits. ‘ : 2.9 22
‘Share-based payments, i K 0.8 0.3
3.7 : 2.5

Directlors’ remuneratron above gives information for the Directors entlre Group remunefation. Directors’ remuneration is borne
by Compames across thé Group. The aggregate of eméluments and amounts receivable underlong térm incentive schemes$
of the highest paid Director was £1.5m (2020:£1.1m). In addmon to the above the Company | mcurred sodial security costs
of £0.4m (2020: £0.4m) in respect.of employees in the year.

3 DIVIDENDS

'There were no distributions to equity shareholders in the year (2020: nif). No dividend has been proposed by the Directors .after the
statement of financial posmon date.
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.CREST NICHOLSON PLC .
NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

4 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

. Computer
Fixtures and equipment
fittings and software Total
£m £m £m

Cost
At 1 November 2019 ) 2.2 131 16.3
Additions - 0.3 0.3
Disposals . (0.2) T (1.4) (1.6)
At 31 Oclober 2020° 20 12:0 14.0
Additions - 0.2 0.2
Disposals ’ (0:2) 19.0) (9.2)
At 31 October 2021 . ‘ 1.8 .32 ) 5.0
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 November 2019 1.0 8.2 9.2
Charge for the year 0.2 4,2 4.4
Disposals (0.2) ) (1.4) ~(1.6).
At 31 Octobér 2020 1.0 11.0 12.0
Charge for the year 0.2 0.8 1.0
Disposals’ (0.2) 19.0) (9.2)
At 31 October 2021 - 1.0 2.8 3.8
Nét book value
At 31 October 2021 » 0.8 ) 04 12
At 31 Octobér 2020 1,0 1.0 20
At 1 November 2019 , 1.2 4.9 6.1

Inline with IAS 16, a review of the fixed asset registerwas carried out during the year.resulting in.removal of computer assets
that were no longer used by the business with a cost of £9,0m and net'book value of £nil.

In the prior year the Company reassessed the IT infrastructure and its useful life in-the business, resulting in an accelerated
depreciation charge in that year of £2.5m within computer equipment and software.

The Company has contractual commitments for the-acquisition of property, plant and equipment of £nil (2020: £nil).
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CREST NICHOLSON PLC: ,
NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANGIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

5 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES

Right-of-use assets included in the Statemént of Financial Position

Office

buildings 'Ot
£m £m
Cost. ~ )
At 1 November 2020 and 31 October.2021 73 7.3
Accumulated depreciation .
At 1 November 2020 6.4 64
Charge for the year 0.6 0.6
At 31 October 2021 7.0 7.0.
‘Net book value .
At'31 Qctober 2021 ' ‘ 0.3 0.3
At 31 October 2020 ' ‘ ) 0.9 0.9
‘ A , 2021 2020
Lease liabilities-included in the Statement of Financial Position £m £m
Non-current 0.2 0.8
»Qu'rrént ) v 0.5 0.5
Total lease liabilities ' ' , . 0.7 1.3
‘ 2021 2020
Amounts recognised'in the Income Statement. £Em £m
Depreciation on.fight-of-use assets 0.6 0.4
Interest-on ieasé:iabilities 0.1
‘ : . 2021 2020
Amounts recogiised in the Cash Flow Statement : - £m £
Lease liabilities paid 0.6 0.6
_ 2021 2020
Maturity of undisc¢ounted contracted lease cash fiows £m £m
Less than one year 0.6 0.6
One to five years 0.2 0.8
Mare than five years ) - -
Total , . ~ 0.8 14
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CRESTNICHOLSON PLC
NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

6 INVESTMENTS

] ) 2021 2020
Shares in subsidiary undertakings £m £m
Cost at beglnnmg and'end of the year ' 20.4 20.4
Provisions at beginning and end of the year B -
Net book value at be_glnnmg and end of the year .20.4 20.4

The subsmhary undertakings which are stgmrcant to the Company and traded during the.year are set out below: The
Company's interest is in respect of ordinary issued share capital which is wholly owned and all the subsudlary undertakings

. are incorporated in Great Britain. They are directly owned by the Company. A'full list of subsidiaries is provided in note 27 to
the consolidated flnancnal statements.”

Subsidiary ! Nature of business
Crest Nicholson Operations Limited Residential and commercial property development

The Directors believe the carrying value of investments is supported by the underlying net assets of the subsidiaries.

7 DEFERRED TAX ASSETS
i Short-term
Share-based temporary
payments differences Total

£m £m’ £m
At 1 November 2019 0.1 0.3 0.4
income statement movements - 05 0.5
At.31 October 2020 . ’ 0.1 08 0.8
Income statement movements ' 0.1 0.1 0.2
At31 Octobgr 2021 : 0.2 0.9 1.1

At the consolidated statement of financial position date the substantively enacted future corporation tax rate up to 31 March
2023 is 19.0% and from 1 April 2023 is 25.0%. Deferred tax assets 'and liabilities have been evaluated using the applicable tax
rates when the assgt is forecast to be realised and the liability is forecast to be settied. The Group has no material unrecognised!
deferred tax assets: The Directors believe that future taxable profits will be sufficient to utilise the deferred tax assets.

8 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

2021 2020
£m £m
Non-current
Amounts owed by joint ventures 9.6 . 22.6.
Current .
Amounts owed by parent company 266.5 102.9
Amounts owed by group undertakings - 132.3
Amounts owed by joint ventures N o 12.0
Other receivables 1.0 0.6
Prepayments and accrued income . ' 0.8 0.9
1280.3 236.7

The Company considers the credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor»im'pair'ed as good. Trade and other
receivables mainly comprise amounts owed by parent company, group undertakings and joint ventures. *

Amounts owed by parent company and group undertakings are unsecured, repayable on demand and carry an interest rate of 5.0%
(2020: 5.0%). Amounts owed by parent and group undertakings are stated after an allowance of £nil has been made (2020: £nil) in

respect of expected credit losses. £nil (2020; £nil) provision was made during the year, £nil (2020: £nil) was utilised, and £nil (2020:

£nil) provision was released during the year.

Amounts due from joint ventures comprises funding provided on one {2020 one) joint venture developments which are being
project managed by the Company and are sub;ect to contractual arrangements. Amounts due from joint ventures are stated after an
allowance of £nil'has been made (2020: £nil) in respect of expected credit losses. £nil (2020: £nil) provision was made during the
year, £nil (2020:-£nil) was utilised, and £nil (2020: £nil) provision was released ‘during the year. Other receivables are stated after
an allowance of £nil (2020: £nil) has been made in respect of expected credit losses. £nil (2020: £nil) provnslon was made during
the year, £nil (2020: £nil) was utilised, and £nil (2020 £nil) provision was released during the yéar,

. Registered no. 1040616
Elassified 3s General



70

CREST NICHOLSONPLC = 4
NOTES TO THE COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {(continued)
8' TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

The maturity of non-current reéceivables is as follows:

2021 2020
£m £m’
Due between one and two years 2.6 4.0
Dué between two and five years . 7.0 18.6
Due after five years - -
' 9.6 22:6
9 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
2021 2020
£m £m |
Current
Amounts owed fo Group undertakings 285 13.1
Other taxation and social security 1.8 1.7
Other payables . 0.8 0.8
Accruals 5.1 2.5
'36.2 184

Amounts owed to Group undertakings are unseclired, repayable on demarid and interést free. Othiér trade payables mainly
comprise amounts due to suppliers which are settled according to agreed payment térfs. Accruals are mainly ovérhead
relatéd where work has been performed but not yet invoiced.

10 CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL _
2021 2020

Allotted and fully paid £m ‘£m
115,294,459 Ordinary shares of 10p each {2020:115.294,459) ' 11.5 116

11 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS ’

There are performance bonds and other arrangements, including those in respect of joint venture partners,.undertaken in the
ordinary course of business. It is impractical to quantify the financial effect of performance bonds and other.arrangements. The
Directors consider the possibility of a cash outflow in settlement of performance bonds and other arrangements t6 be remote and
therefore this does not represent a contingent iiability for the Company

In addition, the Company is required from time to time to act as guarantor for the performance by subsidiary undertakings of -
contracts entered into in the normal course of their business and typically provide that the Company will ensure that the

obligations of the subsndlary are carried out or met in the unlikely event that any subsidiary default occurs. The Company
considers the likelihood of an outflow of cash under these arrangements to be:remote and therefore this does not represent a
contingent liability for the Company.

12 RELATED PARTIES

The Company is exempt from. disclasing transactions with wholly owned subsidiaries in the Group. Other related party
transactions are included within those given in note 24 of the Group financial statements.

13 GROUP UNDERTAKINGS
A list of all the Group’s undertakings at 31 October 2021 is given in note 27 of the Group financial statements.

14 IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE PARENT COMPANY .

The immediate parent company is Castle Bidco Limited, which is incorporated in Great Britain and registered in England and Wales.
The largest higher Group of undertakings for which Group financial statements are drawn up, and ultimate parent Company is that
headed by Crest Nicholson Holdings plc, which is incorporated in Great Biitain and reglstered in England and Wales, Copies of its
Group financial statements can be obtained from the Company's registered office which is shown in the Directors’ Report.
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CREST NICHOLSON PLC
ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES (UNAUDITED)

The Group uses-a number of alternative performance measures (APMs) which are not defined within IFRS. The Directors use
these APMs, along with IFRS measures, to assess the operational performance of the Group as detailed in the Strategic Report
on pages 1-12. Definitions and reconciliations of the financial APMs used compared to IFRS measures, are included below:

Sales

The busnness uses sales as a core management measure to reflect the full extent of its business operations and responsibilities.
Sales is a combination of statutory revenue as per the consolidated income statement and the Group's share of revenue earned
by joint ventures, as detailed in‘the below table.

2021 2020

£m £m

Revenue 786.6 677.9
Group's share of joint venture revenue . - o270 15.2
Sales : . 813.6 693.1

Return on capital employed (ROCE)

The business uses ROCE as a core management measureto réflect the profitability.and efficiency with which capital is
employed. ROCE is calculated as adjusted operatlng profit before joint ventures divided by average capital employed (capital
employed = equity plus net borrowing or less net cash), as presented below. The Group has long-term performance measures
linked to ROCE. ROCE achieved by the business in the year increased to 12.1% (2020: decreased to 6.4%).

2021 2020
Adjusted operating profit £m 110.2 56.2
Average of opening and closing capital employed ' £m '913.6 878.6
ROCE % 12.1 6.4
Capital employed 2021 2020 2019
Equity shareholders' funds — restated* £m 1,010.2 910.8 932.3
Net cash (note 23) £m (52.4) (41 5) (44.5)
Closing capital employed £m 957.8 :869.3 887.8

' 2020 and 12618 restated 1o reflect the .change in accounting-policy on land options. Sée note 25 of the consolidated financial $latements,

Adjusted performance metrics

Adjusled performance metncs as shown below comprise statulory metrics adjusted for the exceptional items as presented in
note 4 of the consalidated financial stalements. The ‘exceptional items 'have a material impact to reported performance and
arise from recent, unforeseen events. As such, the Directors consider these adjusted performance metrics reflect a more
accurate view of its core operations and underlying business performance EBIT margin for share award performance.
conditions is equivalent to operating profit margin: Administrative expensesloverhead efficiency is administrative expenses as
a perceéntage of revénue.

Year ended 31 October 2021 Statutory  Exceptional Adjusted
) items
Gross profit £m 140.0 20.8 160.8
Gross profit margm ’ % 17.8 2.6 204
Administiative expenses £m ’ 49.6 - 49.6
Administrative expenses/overhead efficiency . % 6.3 - 6.3
Operating profit £m 89.4 20.8 110.2
Operating profit margin % 114 © 26 14.0
Net finance expense £m 5.4 (0.5) 49
Profit before taxation - £m 96.5 20.3 116.8
Income tax expense . £m (14.4) (3.9) (18.3)
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CREST NICHOLSON PLC .

ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES (UNAUDITED) (continued)

Year ended 31 October 2020

Gross profit £m
Gross profit margin %
-Administrative expenses ' £m
Administrative expenses / Overhead efficiency %
‘Net impairment'|sses on financial assets £m
Opéerating (loss)/profit. £m
Operéting (loss)/profit margin %
Net finance expense : £m.
(Loss)/profit before taxation £m
Income tax credit/(expense) £m

Gearing including land ¢reditors

Gearing including land creditors is total net debt and land creditors'divided by equity shareholders’ funds and total net debt

and land creditors.

Cash ahd cash equivalents:
Land creditors (note 18)
Total net debt and land. creditors

‘Equity, shareholders! funds’
‘Total net debt and land creditors

Gearing including land creditors

13020 reslated. lo refict the charige in accounting policy on iand options. See riote 25:0f the consalidat
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£m’
£m

£m
£m
£m

Y

Statutory  Exceptional

items

57.2 48.3
8.4 7.2
(56.5) 7.5
(8.3) RR]
(7:9) 76
7.2) 63.4
(1) - 94
{8.8) 0.5
(13.2) 63.9
2.8 {12.4)

Adjusted

105.5
15.6
(48.0)
(7.2)
(0.3)
§6.2
8.3
(8:3)
50.7
(9:3)

2021 2020
§2.4 415
(157.9) (103.9)
(105.5) (62.4)
(1,010.2) (910:8)
(105.5) " {62.4)
11,115.7) " (973.2)
9.5

ed financial st

6.4
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CREST NICHOLSON PLC (01 040616) )
APPENDIX TO THE ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ’ : .

FOR THE YEAR ENDING 31 OCTOBER 2021

The subsidiary company Crest Nicholson (Bath) Holdmgs Limited (05235961) is taking advantage of exempuon from audit under
section 479A of the Companies Act for the year ended 31 October 2021.
Approved by the Board and signed by its order by:

D Cooper :

Director o '

Crest House

Pyrcroft Road .

Chertsey .
‘Surrey KT16 9GN ' ) . ' ,

12 April 2022
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